
  

Agenda 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY COMMITTEE 
May 25, 2016 

2:00 p.m.  
 

    1.    CALL TO ORDER  
   
    2.  PUBLIC COMMENT  
 Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114 (2013) the Right of Way Committee will allow public comment on 

any matter either identified on this meeting agenda as requiring action, or anticipated to come before 
the Committee for action in reasonable proximity to this meeting. Speakers shall be limited to three 
minutes per person and the assignment of one person’s time to another or designation of group 
spokesperson shall be allowed at the discretion of the Committee Chairman. 

 

   
    3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – April 27, 2016 TAB A 
 Requesting approval of the 04/27/16 minutes.  Action Item.  
   
     4.   S.R. 429 (ALI AND ROBERTS) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-

204) PARCEL 262 – David Shontz, Shutts & Bowen 
 

TAB B 
 Requesting the Committee’s recommendation for Board approval of the proposed 

mediated settlement agreement.  Action Item. 
 

   
     5. S.R. 429 (ACKLEY) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-204) 

PARCELS 262, 266 AND 866 – Trippe Cheek, Winderweedle, Haines, et. al. 
 

TAB C 
 Requesting the Committee’s recommendation for Board approval for the proposed 

settlement of attorney’s fees.  Action Item.   
 

   
    
     6.  

S.R. 429 (GRESS) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-204) PARCEL 
304 – David Shontz, Shutts & Bowen 

 
TAB D 

 Requesting the Committee’s recommendation for Board approval of the proposed 
negotiated settlement.  Action Item. 

 

   
     7.  S.R. 429 (LEWIS) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-204) PARCEL 

305 – David Shontz, Shutts & Bowen 
 

TAB E 
 Requesting the Committee’s recommendation for Board approval of the proposed 

negotiated settlement.  Action Item. 
 

   
     8. S.R. 453 (CSX TRANSPORTATION, INC.) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT 

(PROJECT 429-206) PARCEL 827/727 – David Shontz, Shutts & Bowen 
 

TAB F 
 Requesting the Committee’s recommendation for Board approval of the proposed 

negotiated settlement.  Action Item. 
 

   
     9. S.R. 408 / EAST-WEST EXPRESSWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 101) SURPLUS 

PARCEL 1-141 – Linda Brehmer Lanosa, CFX  
 

TAB G 
 Requesting the Committee’s recommendation for Board approval of the request for 

release of Phosphate, Minerals, and Metals and Petroleum Rights located at S.R. 
408 and Chickasaw Trail.  Action Item. 

 

   
 (CONTINUED ON PAGE 2)  
   

4974 ORL TOWER RD. ORLANDO, FL 32807  |  PHONE: (407) 690-5000  |  FAX: (407) 690-5011 
WWW.EXPRESSWAYAUTHORITY.COM  



  

 Agenda   
 RIGHT-OF-WAY COMMITTEE  
 May 25, 2016  
 Page 2  
   
   
  10. S.R. 429 / WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-202, 203, 204, 205 

AND 206) – Trippe Cheek, Winderweedle, Haines, et. al. 
 
TAB H 

 Requesting the Committee’s recommendation for Board approval of the proposed 
Addendum to Amended Agreement for appraisal services by Bullard, Hall & Adams, 
Inc.   Action Item. 

 

   
  11. S.R. 429 / WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-202, 203, 204, 205 

AND 206) – Trippe Cheek, Winderweedle, Haines, et. al. 
 
TAB I 

 Requesting the Committee’s recommendation for Board approval of the proposed 
Addendum to Amended Agreement for appraisal services by Durrance & 
Associates, P.A.  Action Item. 

 

   
  12.  S.R. 429 / WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-202, 203, 204, 205 

AND 206) & S.R. 408 WIDENING, 4078/417 INTERCHANGE PROJECT 408-253F 
Trippe Cheek, Winderweedle, Haines, et. al. 

 
TAB J 

 Requesting the Committee’s recommendation for Board approval of the proposed 
Addendum to Agreement for Engineering Expert Witness Services by Donald W. 
McIntosh Associates, Inc. Action Item. 

 

   
  13. REAL ESTATE AUDIT – Joseph L. Passiatore, CFX TAB K 
 CFX’s Internal Auditor, Protiviti, Real Estate Internal Audit Report.  

Informational Item. 
 

   
  14. S.R. 429 (HATCHER) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429- 202) 

PARCELS 113 (PARTS  A & B) / 713 
Trippe Cheek, Winderweedle, Haines, et. al.   

 
 
TAB L 

 Summary of trial.  Informational Item.  
   
  15. OTHER BUSINESS  
   
  16. ADJOURNMENT  

 
This meeting is open to the public. 

 
Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes states that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by a board, agency, or 
commission with respect to any matter considered at a meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 
made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
ln accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if any person with a disability as defined by the ADA 
needs special accommodation to participate in this proceeding, then not later than two (2) business days prior to the 
proceeding, he or she should contact the Central Florida Expressway Authority at 407-690-5000. 
 
Persons who require translation services, which are provided at no cost, should contact CFX at (407) 690-5000 
x5317 or by email at lranetta.dennis@CFXway.com at least three business days prior to the event. 

4974 ORL TOWER RD. ORLANDO, FL 32807  |  PHONE: (407) 690-5000  |  FAX: (407) 690-5011 
WWW.EXPRESSWAYAUTHORITY.COM  



Tab A



 

 
MINUTES 

CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
Right of Way Committee Meeting  

April 27, 2016 
Location:  CFX Boardroom 

 
 
Committee Members Present: 
Sandy Minkoff, Lake County Representative, Chairman 
Frank Raymond, Osceola County Representative 
Ann Caswell, Orange County Representative  
Laurie Botts, City of Orlando Representative 
Jean Jreij, Seminole County Representative 
Christopher Murvin, Citizen Representative  
Brendon Dedekind, Citizen Representative  
 
CFX Staff Present at Dais: 
Laura Kelley, Executive Director 
Joseph L. Passiatore, General Counsel  
Mimi Lamaute, Paralegal/Recording Secretary 
 
 
Item 1:  CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m. by Chairman Minkoff. 
 
 
Item 2:  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment.  
 
 
Chairman’s Comments 
Chairman Minkoff introduced the newly appointed Citizen Representatives, Mr. Murvin and Mr. Dedekind 
and welcomed them to the Committee. Each Committee member introduced themselves.  
 
Mr. Minkoff advised the Committee that before them was an amended Right of Way Committee Charter 
which was approved at the April 14, 2016 Board Meeting, attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The amendment 
allows each gubernatorial Board appointee to nominate a Citizen Representative to each of the 
Committees and revises the quorum accordingly.   
 
Chairman Minkoff described his reason for switching to E-PASS and informed the Committee that CFX is 
engaged in a campaign to build E-PASS membership.  
 

 
 

Page 1 of 9 
 



MINUTES 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
RIGHT OF WAY COMMITTEE MEETING 
April 27, 2016 
 
 
 
Item 3:  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Action:  A motion was made by Ms. Botts and seconded by Mr. Raymond to approve the March 23, 
2016 Right of Way Committee minutes as presented.  
 
Vote:  The motion carried unanimously with seven members present and voting AYE by voice vote.   
 
 
Item 4:  S.R. 429 (HORNE, J. D. - TRUST) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-203)  
 PARCEL 175 
 
Mr. Shontz provided the Committee with the description and background of the parcel.  
 
CFX retained the services of Walter N. Carpenter, Jr., MAI/CRE, of Pinel & Carpenter, Inc., who estimated 
value of the 1.524 acres being taken at $15,000 per acre or $22,860. Mr. Carpenter's analysis found no 
damages to the remainder property.   
 
Although the Owners have not finalized their appraisal report, Kent Hipp, counsel for the property owners, 
argued the land value should be $40,000 per acre, and the remainder has suffered damages of 50%. Mr. 
Hipp argued that the CFX’s own appraisers for the immediate parcel to the south and two parcels to the 
north were similarly valued.  Mr. Hall on behalf of the CFX appraised parcels 174 and 177 for $30,000 per 
acre and 30% damages.  Additionally, Mr. Hall also appraised parcel 178 for $30,000 per acre and 50% 
damages.  
 
The parties were able to reach an agreement in full settlement of all claims for compensation by the 
property owners in the amount of $100,000, plus reduced experts' fees of $5,000, plus statutory attorney's 
fees totaling $25,456.20. 
 
Questions were asked by the Committee regarding the amount of the remainder suffered damages of 50%.  
Mr. Shontz explained the damages to this property, the damages suffered and assessed to the neighboring 
parcels by CFX appraisers and the CFX study by a group of appraisers for the taking of the parcels for the 
Wekiva Project. The Committee commented on the above and the fact that this was the Owners 
homestead for many years.   
 
Action:  A motion was made by Ms. Botts and seconded by Ms. Caswell to recommend to the Board 
approval of the proposed mediated settlement agreement in the amount of $130,456.20 in full 
settlement of all compensation claims and apportionment, statutory attorney’s fees and costs, and 
experts’ fees and costs for Parcel 175.  
 
Vote:  The motion carried unanimously with seven members present and voting AYE by voice vote.  
 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 9 



MINUTES 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
RIGHT OF WAY COMMITTEE MEETING 
April 27, 2016 
 
 
Item 5:   S.R. 429 (HORNE, J. D. - TRUST) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-203) 
  PARCEL 207 
 
Mr. Shontz seeks the recommendation of the Right of Way Committee for Board approval of a negotiated 
settlement between Ernest L. Home and Karen H. Morris, as Successor Co-Trustees of the J.D. and 
Kathleen L. Home Trust (the "Owners").  He provided the Committee with the description and background 
of the parcel.   
 
CFX retained the appraisal services of Walter N. Carpenter, Jr., MAI, CRE, of Pinel & Carpenter, Inc.. Mr. 
Carpenter opined the total compensation due for the taking of Parcel 207 is $198,750. 
 
Although the Owners have not completed their appraisal report, Kent Hipp counsel for the property owner 
argued that based upon an executed sales contract for the remainder property with Publix in the amount of 
$6.50 s.f. and other comparable sales the total value of the taking should be $329,926 ($283,426 land, 
improvements $21,500, and cost to cure $25,000). 
 
The parties were able to reach a negotiated settlement in the amount of $270,189 in full settlement of all 
claims for compensation by the property owners, plus reduced expert fees of $8,000, plus statutory 
attorney's fees of $23,574.87 for a total compensation of $301,763.87. 
 
The Committee asked several questions, which were answered by Mr. Shontz. 
 
 
Motion:  A motion was made by Mr. Raymond and seconded by Mr. Jreij to recommend to the Board 
approval of the proposed settlement agreement in the amount of $301,763.87 in full settlement of all 
compensation claims and apportionment, statutory attorney’s fees and costs, and experts’ fees and 
costs for Parcel 207. 
 
Vote:  The motion carried unanimously with seven members present and voting AYE by voice vote.  
 
 
Item 6:  S.R. 429 (RIGSBY) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-204) PARCEL  
              240 
 
Mr. Shontz seeks the recommendation of the Right of Way Committee for Board approval of the proposed 
mediated settlement between Stephen Lee Rigsby and Mark Lane Rigsby (the "Owners").   He provided 
the Committee with a description and the background of the parcel.   
 
CFX's retained the appraisal services of David K. Hall, ASA, of Bullard, Hall & Adams, Inc.  Mr. Hall opined 
the total compensation due for the taking of Parcel 240 is $208,000 ($59,800 land and improvements, 
$144,000 damages and $4,200 cost to cure). 
 

 
 

Page 3 of 9 



MINUTES 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
RIGHT OF WAY COMMITTEE MEETING 
April 27, 2016 
 
 
The Owners retained the appraisal services of Richard C. Dreggors, GAA, of Calhoun, Dreggors & 
Associates, who estimated the value of the taking to be $290,500 ($70,300 land, $15,400 improvements, 
$200,600 damages and $4,200 cost to cure). 
 
During mediation, the parties were able to reach a settlement in the amount of $239,500 as full settlement 
of all claims for compensation by the property owner, plus statutory attorney's fees totaling $10,395, plus 
reduced expert fees and costs totaling $41,227. 
 
 
Action:  A motion was made by Ms. Botts and seconded by Mr. Raymond to recommend to the 
Board approval of the proposed settlement agreement in the amount of $239,500 in full settlement 
of all compensation claims and apportionment, statutory attorney’s fees and costs, and experts’ 
fees and costs for Parcel 240. 
 
Vote:  The motion carried unanimously with seven members present and voting AYE by voice vote.  
 
 
Item 7:  S.R. 429 (GGH 10) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-202) PARCEL 140 
 
Haylee O’Dowd of Winderweedle, Haines Ward & Woodman, P.A. presented this item in Mr. Cheek’s 
absence.  She seeks the Right of Way Committee's recommendation for Board approval to serve an Offer 
of Judgment to GGH 10, LLC ("Landowner") for Parcel 140 in the amount of $50,000.   
 
Ms. O’Dowd provided the Committee with a description and the background on the parcel. The property is 
a vacant piece of land that had previously been excavated by the Acme Recycling Corporation and used for 
a clay pit, and then subsequently as a land clearing debris disposal facility.  Soil borings from a level 2 
contamination impact assessment indicate landfill debris (mostly wood, tree trunks, asphalt, tires and 
concrete) between two and eight feet deep covering most of the property.  It appears that there is no 
physical access to the property, as Bailey Hill Road ends approximately 600 feet east of the southeast 
corner of the property.  The Landowner would therefore have to rely on obtaining either an implied 
easement or statutory easement of necessity across the adjoining property.    
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
CFX initially retained the services of Craig Ebaugh with Bledsoe & Ebaugh, LLC, to appraise the property. 
Mr. Ebaugh concluded that, due to the subject's marginal land characteristics and lack of physical access, 
development potential was questionable.  This resulted in a total compensation estimate of $30,400.  
 
Chad Durrance of Durrance & Associates updated Mr. Ebaugh’s appraisal to the date of taking for CFX.  
Mr. Durrance's compensation estimate considered additional cost information to remediate the site and to 
acquire and construct access to the site, including removal of a much greater amount of debris than was 
originally estimated.  Due to the uncertainty of access and the costs associated with establishing and 
constructing access, he determined that the property was worth $500 per acre.  Mr. Durrance’s estimate is 
summarized as follows: 
 

 
 

Page 4 of 9 



MINUTES 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
RIGHT OF WAY COMMITTEE MEETING 
April 27, 2016 
 
 

Value of Part Taken (4.943 acres)    $2,500.00 
Severance Damages to Remainder (5.6 acres)   $1,500.00 
Total Compensation     $4,000.00 

 
The Landowner has retained the appraisal services of Rick Dreggors with Calhoun, Dreggors & Associates, 
Inc.  Mr. Dreggors' compensation estimate is summarized as follows: 
 

Value of Part Taken     $148,200  
Severance Damages to Remainder   $167,500 
Total Compensation     $313,900 

 
On April 12, 2016 mediation was conducted without a successful resolution.  
 
CFX has previously deposited, with the Clerk of Court, $30,400 as its good faith estimate of value. 
Therefore, if an offer of judgment of $50,000 is accepted, CFX will have to pay an additional $19,600 to 
resolve this case, in addition to attorney’s fees and costs. 
 
The Committee asked questions, which were answered by Ms. O’Dowd.  
 
 
Action:  A motion was made by Ms. Caswell and seconded by Mr. Murvin to recommend to the 
Board approval to serve an Offer of Judgment in the amount of $50,000 for Parcel 140. 
 
Vote:  The motion carried unanimously with seven members present and voting AYE by voice vote.  
 
 
Item 8:  S.R. 429 (PLYMOUTH HARBOR, LLC) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-202)  
 PARCEL 141 
 
Ms. O’Dowd seeks the Right of Way Committee's recommendation for Board approval of a settlement with 
Plymouth Harbor, LLC ("Landowner"), for the acquisition of Parcel 141. She provided a description and 
background of the parcel.  
 
CFX retained the appraisal services of Chad Durrance of Durrance & Associates to appraise the property.  
Mr. Durrance's valuation estimate is summarized as follows: 
 

Value of the Part Taken - 3.24 acres   $140,600 
Severance Damages to the 21-acre remainder  $214,400 
CFX's Total Compensation Estimate   $355,000 

 
The Landowner retained the appraisal services of Grant Austin with American Valuation, Inc.  Mr. Austin's 
compensation estimate is summarized as follows: 
 

 
 

Page 5 of 9 



MINUTES 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
RIGHT OF WAY COMMITTEE MEETING 
April 27, 2016 
 
 

Value of Part Taken     $   274,000 
Severance Damages to Remainder   $1,258,535 
Landowner's Total Compensation Estimate    $1,561,035 

 
The Landowner agreed to accept CFX's proposal to resolve this case for a total of $931,100.  The terms of 
the settlement proposal are summarized as follows: 
 

Compensation to Landowner     $700,000 
Attorney's fees      $126,100 
Expert fees      $105,000 
Total Settlement      $931,100 

 
The Committee asked questions, which were answered by Ms. O’Dowd.  
 
 
Action:  A motion was made by Mr. Jreij and seconded by Mr. Murvin to recommend to the Board 
approval of the proposed settlement agreement in the amount of $931,100 in full settlement of all 
compensation claims, statutory attorney’s fees and costs, and experts’ fees and costs for Parcel 
141. 
  
Vote:  The motion carried unanimously with seven members present and voting AYE by voice vote.  
 
 
Item 9:  S.R. 429 (DUKE ENERGY) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-205) PARCEL 291 
 
Ms. O’Dowd  seeks the Right of Way Committee's recommendation for Board approval of the Utility 
Relocation Agreement and authorization for the Executive Director to execute the Utility Relocation 
Agreement  between Duke Energy Florida, LLC (“Duke Energy”) and the Central Florida Expressway 
Authority for relocation of Duke Energy's Transmission facilities in the S.R. 429-205 corridor, Parcel 291 
(“Project”).   
 
The design and construction of the Project requires the relocation of a portion of Duke Energy's 
transmission facilities located within or near CFX’s limited access right-of-way line. The purpose of the 
Utility Relocation Agreement is to facilitate the relocation, identify the reimbursable expenses of Duke 
Energy, and coordinate the construction responsibilities of Duke Energy as it relates to CFX's construction 
schedule for the Project. 
 
Duke Energy has estimated the actual cost to CFX for relocation of Duke's transmission facilities as not to 
exceed $1,977,550.63. Should the actual costs exceed the above estimates by more than 10%, the Utility 
Relocation Agreement requires Duke Energy to submit a request for prior approval in writing, setting forth 
the amount of such additional costs and the changed conditions requiring the additional costs, and obtain 
the prior written agreement of the CFX before performing work, in order for CFX to become responsible for 
any additional reimbursement to Duke Energy for the additional amounts. 

 
 

Page 6 of 9 



MINUTES 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
RIGHT OF WAY COMMITTEE MEETING 
April 27, 2016 
 
 
The estimates provided by Duke Energy incorporated into the Utility Relocation Agreement were reviewed 
by CH2MHill and determined to be within a reasonable range. 
 
The Committee members made comments and asked questions, which were answered by Ms. O’Dowd, 
Mr. Passiatore and Glenn Pressimone, CFX’s Director of Engineering.  
 
 
Action:  A motion was made by Ms. Botts and seconded by Mr. Raymond to recommend to the 
Board approval of the proposed Utility Relocation Agreement in the amount not to exceed 
$1,977,550.63 and authorization for the Executive Director to execute the Utility Relocation 
Agreement between Duke Energy Florida, LLC and CFX. 
  
Vote:  The motion carried unanimously with seven members present and voting AYE by voice vote.  
 
 
Item 10:  S.R. 429 (MEGA GNG, LLP) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-203) PARCEL  
    232 
 
Mr. Passiatore explained this parcel is being handled by Ms. Brehmer Lanosa in order to mitigate some of 
the expenses from outside counsel. He will present the item in her absence.  
 
Parcel 232 is a strip and corner clip taking consisting of 7,407 square feet along the south border of the 
parent tract and the southwest corner.  The property is located on the northeast corner of Plymouth 
Sorrento Road and West Kelly Park Road.   
 
Walter N. Carpenter, Jr., MAI, CRE, appraised the property. Mr. Carpenter estimated the value of 
Parcel 232 as of June 6, 2014 as follows: 
 

Value of Land Taken (7,407 sf @ $2/sf)    $14,800 
Improvements (740-ft chain link fence, sod)   $11,680 
Severance Damages                    0 
Cost to Cure                     $5,490 
Total                   $31,970 

 
After consulting with Dan K. Richardson, PhD, MAI, AI-GRS, and John M. Donaldson of JMD Engineering, 
Inc., the owner, Mega GNG, demanded the following: 
 

Value of Land Taken (7,407 sf (a) $6.48/sf)   $48,000 
Improvements (740-ft chain link fence, sod)  $30,670 
Severance Damages                0 
Cost to Cure                   $  9,773 
Total        $88,000 
Total Request for Expert Fees and Costs and  

 
 

Page 7 of 9 



MINUTES 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
RIGHT OF WAY COMMITTEE MEETING 
April 27, 2016 
 
 

Attorney's Fees and Costs All Inclusive                          $22,414  
Inclusive total                   $110,414 

 
The parties reached a proposed settlement in the amount of $59,000 resolving all claims for compensation 
from the Owner from the taking of Parcel 232, including severance damages, business damages, tort 
damages, interest, attorney's fees, attorney's costs, expert fees, expert costs, and any other claim, subject 
to apportionment, if any. 
 
 
Action:  A motion was made by Mr. Raymond and seconded by Ms. Caswell to recommend to the 
Board approval of the proposed settlement agreement in the amount of $59,000 in full settlement of 
all compensation including severance damages, business damages, tort damages, interest, 
attorney's fees, attorney's costs, expert fees, expert costs, and any other claim, subject to 
apportionment, if any for Parcel 232. 
  
Vote:  The motion carried unanimously with seven members present and voting AYE by voice vote.  
 
 
Item 11:  S.R. 414 – (DOERR TRUST) MAITLAND AVENUE EXTENSION PROJECT (PROJECT 414- 
   211) CASE NO. 2006-CA-006250-O / PARCEL 406 
 
Mr. Passiatore explained this is the last parcel in the Maitland Avenue Extension Project. He introduced Mr. 
Richard Milian of Broad & Cassel who represented CFX in this matter.  Mr. Milian is requesting the 
Committee’s recommendation for Board approval of a mediated settlement agreement of attorney’s fees 
and experts costs arising from the acquisition of Parcel 406. He provided the Committee with the case 
background, the history of the District Court appeals in the case, a review of the Florida Supreme Court’s 
rulings and details of Doerr’s claims.  
 
He is requesting approval of the proposed settlement agreement (attached as Exhibit B) in the amount of 
$1,500,000 in full and final settlement of all attorneys’ fees and expert fees in this matter.  
 
The Committee members made comments and asked questions, which were answered by staff and Mr. 
Milian.  
 
 
Action:  A motion was made by Mr. Raymond and seconded by Ms. Botts to recommend to the 
Board approval of the proposed mediated settlement agreement in the amount of $1,500,000 in full 
settlement of all attorneys’ fees and expert fees in Parcel 406. 
 
Vote:  The motion carried unanimously with seven members present and voting AYE by voice vote.  
 
 
Item 12:  OTHER BUSINESS 

 
 

Page 8 of 9 



MINUTES 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
RIGHT OF WAY COMMITTEE MEETING 
April 27, 2016 
 
 
 
S.R. 429 (HMF LLC) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-204) PARCEL 301  
 
Mr. Passiatore reported that David Shontz from Shutts & Bowen filed an Order of Taking for Parcel 301.  
Glenn Pressimone, CFX’s Director of Engineering testified at the hearing for the necessity of that Parcel.  
This Parcel involves more than the right-of-way, it is also a sizable retention pond.  The property owner 
contested the order of taking and introduced testimony by a drainage engineer claiming that CFX had not 
shown a necessity for a pond of that size.  The trial court entered the Order of Taking and the property 
owner appealed that decision to the 5th District Court of Appeals.  The 5th District Court of Appeals has 
affirmed the trial Court’s order. The court has denied the property owner’s request for attorney’s fees.   
 
 
Item 13:  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. Minkoff adjourned the meeting at approximately 3:51 p.m. 
 
 
Minutes approved on                                   , 2016. 
 
 
Pursuant to the Florida Public Records Law and CFX Records Management Policy, audio tapes of all 
Board and applicable Committee meetings are maintained and available upon request to the Records 
Management Liaison Officer at publicrecords@CFXWay.com or 4974 ORL Tower Road, Orlando, FL 
32807.   
 
 

 
 

Page 9 of 9 

mailto:publicrecords@CFXWay.com


















TabB



















































TabC

























TabD



















































 
 728 West Smith Street • Orlando, Florida 32804   
 Tel (407) 835-3395  •  Fax (407) 835-3393 

Calhoun, Dreggors & Associates, Inc. 
• Real Estate Appraisers & Consultants •  

 
 

 
  

PREPARED FOR MEDIATION 
 
 
 January 8, 2016 
 
 
 
 
Kent L. Hipp Esq. 
c/o GrayRobinson, P.A. 
301 E. Pine Street, Suite 1400 
Orlando, FL 32803 
 
RE: Owner: Lewis-Gress 
 Project: Wekiva Parkway 
 Parcel No.: 304 
 County: Orange 

 
INVOICE 

 
Inspect subject property, meeting with owners and experts, review access and land size 
areas for the subject property, review titlework regarding same, conferences with 
owner’s representative regarding highest and best use of the property before the taking, 
research/analysis of land sales, research/analysis of improved home sales, analysis of 
sales, meeting with experts and owner’s representative to review our findings, review 
information regarding access easement for the Parkway contractor, analysis and review 
of the value of an easement, conference with owner’s representative to review. 
 

Abrams Schmidt:  22.25 Hrs. x $175/Hr. = $3,894 

Dreggors:  22.00 Hrs. x $275/Hr. =   6,050   

Total  $9,944 
  

 Thank you, 
 
 

  
Richard C. Dreggors, GAA 
President 
 

 
RCD/ddp 



OWNER LEWIS-GRESS  COURTNEY ABRAMS SCHMIDT 
PROJECT WEKIVA PARKWAY  
PARCEL(S) 304 
COUNTY ORANGE    
 

DATE TYPE OF SERVICE HOURS 
 

03/13/15 REVIEW OF FILE/SUBJECT DATA; REVIEW/ANALYSIS 
OF CONDEMNOR APPRAISAL; ANALYSIS OF 
CARPENTER SALES. 

3.50 

03/24/15 REVIEW NOTES FROM MEETING; REVIEW MAP 
SHOWING ACCESS. 

1.25 

04/10/15 PREPARE FOR SITE INSPECTION. 0.50 

04/13/15 PREPARE FOR SITE INSPECTION; INSPECTED 
SUBJECT PROPERTY AND MET WITH OWNERS. 

1.75 

05/15/15 RESEARCH LAND SALES. 2.25 

05/18/15 RESEARCH/ANALYSIS OF SALES; CONFERENCE 
CALL WITH ENGINEER; ANALYSIS OF DAMAGES; 
REVIEW OF ENGINEER’S ANALYSIS; PREPARE FOR 
MEETING WITH CLIENTS. 

4.75 

05/19/15 ANALYSIS OF SALES; RAN PRELIMINARY NUMBERS; 
ANALYSIS OF DAMAGES; CONFERENCE WITH RICK 
TO PREPARE FOR MEETING; PREPARE EXHIBITS 
FOR MEETING. 

3.50 

05/20/15 PREPARE FOR MEETING; MEETING WITH EXPERTS 
AND OWNERS. 

 3.00 

09/03/15 PREPARE EXHIBITS FOR OWNER’S 
REPRESENTATIVE; MEETING WITH RICK TO REVIEW. 

 1.75 

 TOTAL HOURS 22.25 

 



OWNER LEWIS-GRESS  RICHARD C. DREGGORS, GAA 
PROJECT WEKIVA PARKWAY  
PARCEL(S) 304 
COUNTY ORANGE    
 

DATE TYPE OF SERVICE HOURS 
 

11/27/12 REVIEW INFORMATION ON THE SUBJECT PARCEL; 
CONFERENCE WITH OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE. 

0.75 

12/20/12 PREPARE FOR AND MEET WITH OWNER AND 
EXPERTS TO BECOME FAMILIAR WITH FAMILY 
OWNERSHIPS/USES AND REVIEW TAKING. 

1.25 

01/02/13 REVIEW SURVEY FOR SUBJECT. 0.50 

01/03/13 REVIEW EASEMENTS PROVIDED BY OWNER 
REGARDING ACCESS. 

1.25 

01/24/13 REVIEW ADDITIONAL TITLEWORK REGARDING 
ACCESS; CONFERENCE WITH OWNER’S 
REPRESENTATIVE. 

1.00 

02/28/13 MEETING WITH ENGINEER; CONFERENCE WITH 
OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE; REVIEW SURVEYS AND 
EASEMENTS. 

1.00 

04/21/14 CONFERENCE WITH OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE TO 
DISCUSS PRELIMINARY OPINIONS ON HIGHEST AND 
BEST USE OF THE SUBJECT PARCEL. 

0.75 

04/22/14 REVIEW INFORMATION ON THE SUBJECT PARCEL 
FROM OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE. 

0.25 

03/09/15 REVIEW AND CONFERENCE WITH OWNER’S 
REPRESENTATIVE TO PREPARE FOR MEETING. 

1.25 

03/23/15 REVIEW CFX APPRAISAL; PREPARE FOR AND MEET 
WITH OWNERS TO REVIEW VALUATION ISSUES AND 
SCOPE OF WORK. 

3.75 

04/13/15 PREPARE FOR AND INSPECT SUBJECT; MEET WITH 
OWNERS TO DISCUSS TAKING. 

1.50 

05/15/15 REVIEW INFORMATION TO PREPARE FOR MEETING; 
MEETING WITH ASSOCIATE TO PREPARE FOR 
MEETING. 

1.50 

05/20/15 PREPARE FOR AMD MEET WITH OWNERS TO 
REVIEW OUR PRELIMINARY FINDINGS. 

 4.25 



OWNER LEWIS-GRESS  RICHARD C. DREGGORS, GAA 
PROJECT WEKIVA PARKWAY  
PARCEL(S) 304 
COUNTY ORANGE    
 

DATE TYPE OF SERVICE HOURS 
 

09/03/15 PREPARE AND REVIEW ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS 
FOR CFX. 

0.75 

12/04/15 REVIEW INFORMATION ON THE ACCESS EASEMENT 
NEEDED BY CFX CONTRACTOR. 

0.50 

12/08/15 REVIEW INFORMATION WE HAVE RECEIVED FROM 
CFX; CONFERENCE WITH ENGINEER; ANALYSIS OF 
TWO YEAR TCE VALUES FOR HAUL ROAD; 
CONFERENCE WITH OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE TO 
REVIEW. 

 1.75 

 TOTAL HOURS 22.00 

 



TabE





















































TabF







































TabG



;: CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM

TO Right of V/ay Committee Members

FROM:

DATE: l|i4ay 12,2016

SUBJECT:

Linda S. Brehmer Lanosa, Deputy General Counsel dh;2t &

Request for Release of Phosphate, Minerals, and Metals and Petroleum Rights on
Property located at the Northeast corner of s.R. 408 and chickasaw Trail
Address: 401 N. Chickasaw Trail, Orlando, Florida 32910
Project 101 (East-West Expressway), Surplus Parcel #l-I4l
Owner: Chickasaw Property, LLC
Size of Land: 4.175 acres

BACKGROUNI) INFORMATION

Chickasaw Property, LLC, has requested a release from the Central Florida Expressway
Authority ("CFX") of rights over the "phosphate, minerals, metals or petroleum," hereinafter
"Mineral Rights," that may be in, on, or under property that was originally conveyed by CFX's
predecessor, the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority ("OOCEA"), as surplus property.
The property, hereinafter o'the Property," is located at the northeast corner of S.R. 408 and
Chickasaw Trail. It was conveyed in or around June 1997 via Special Warranty Deed recorded at
O.R. Book 5275,page264, which Deed did not make any mention of whether Mineral Rights were
conveyed or reserved.

Counsel for Chickasaw Property submitted the attached letter with a detailed explanation
articulating the basis for its request along with supporting documentation. In essence, Chickasaw
Property believes that the parties never intended the Mineral Rights to be excluded from the
conveyance. In the event that CFX decides not to release the Mineral Rights, Chickasaw Property
may seek to pursue other legal remedies to remove the reservation of Mineral Rights from its title.

ANALYSIS

Section 270.11(1), Florida Statutes, allows an agency of the State to choose not to reserve
Mineral Rights in land that it conveys. Section 270.I1(l) states:

Unless the applicable agency chooses not to reserve such interest
and_except as otherwise provided by law, in all contracts and deeds
forthe sale of land executed. . . by any. . . agency of the state,
there shall be reserved for such. . . agency ofthe state, . . . an
undivided three-fourths interest in, and title in and to an undivided
three-fourths interest in, all the phosphate, minerals, and metals
that are or may be in, on, or under the said land and an undivided

4974ORLTOWERRD.ORLANDO,FL3280'l IPHONE:(407)690-5000 IFAX:(407)690-5011

www.cFXWAY.coM ûw



Project 101 (East-West Expressway), Surplus Parcel #I-l4I
Owner: Chickasaw Property, LLC

one-half interest in all the petroleum that is or may be in, on, or
under said land with the privilege to mine and develop the same.

S 270.11, Fla. Stat. Interestingly, at the time of the sale in 1997, Section270.I1(1) did not
include the clause that provides a state agency with the discretion to release Mineral Rights as

shown by the underlined text above. Nevertheless, Section 270J1(3) authorizes agencies of the
state to sell or release Mineral Rights upon petition by the purchaser with a statement justifying
the reasons for such sale or release.

REOUESTED ACTION

Approve Chickasaw Property's request for release of phosphate, minerals, metals and
petroleum rights in, on and under the property located at the northeast corner of S.R.408 and
Chickasaw Trail conveyed in or around June 1997 via Special Wananty Deed recorded at O.R. Book
5275,page264, contingent upon the execution of a Release from Chickasaw Property,LLC, of any
claims connected with or arising from the sale of the surplus property.

Attachments: Proposed Release of Mineral Rights to be executed by CFX
Proposed Release of Claims to be executed by Chickasaw Property, LLC
Special Warranty Deed recorded at O.R. Book 5275, page264
Letter from Steve Gray, Esq., with Backup



Prepared by:
Paul Stanley West, Esq.
Attorney & Counselor at Law
c/o Clayton & McCulloh, P.A.
1065 Maitland Center Commons Blvd.
Maitland, FL 32751

RELEASE AFFIDAVIT

Before me, the undersigned authority, duly authorized to take acknowledgments and
administer oaths, personally appeared the Central Florida Expressway Authority, ("Affiant"), by
and through its undersigned authorized signatory, who states that:

1. Affiant is successor to the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority, a public
corporation of the State of Florida, pursuant to Section 348.753(2)(a), Florida Statutes.

2. Affiant, by and through its undersigned authorized signatory, for and in consideration
of the sum of ($10.00) TEN and 00/100 DOLLARS and other valuable consideration, in hand

this day paid, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, hereby releases any
and all reservations, right and title it might have pursuant to Section 270.I1(1), Florida Statutes,
in all the phosphate, minerals, metals and petroleum that may be in, on, or under the land
described in that certain Special Warranty Deed executed on or about June 9, 1997 by Orlando-
Orange County Expressway Authority, a public corporation of the State of Florida, as Grantor, to
E.G. Banks, Grantee, recorded on or about June 17, 1997 in Official Records Book 5275, at
Pages 264 throngh266, inclusive, of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida.

3. All recording references set forth herein are to the Public Records of Orange County,
Florida, unless otherwise noted.

4. This Release Affidavit is given for the purpose of clearing any possible question or
objection to the title to the above referenced property and, for the purpose of inducing
Community Association Title, Inc. and Old Republic National Title Insurance Company to issue

title insurance on the subject property, with the knowledge that said title companies are relying
upon the statements set forth herein.

5. This Release Affidavit was approved by the Board of the Central Florida Expressway
Authority after apublic hearing duly advertised regarding the foregoing.

I STGNATURES TO FOLLO\il ]



IN \ilITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these presents to be executed

in their respective names as of the date first above written.

CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY
AUTHORITY, a body politic and corporate, and
an agency of the state, under the laws of the State of
Florida

ATTEST:
By

'Welton Cadwell, Chairman
Darleen Mazzil\o, Executive Secretary

Date: 20t6

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY
for the use and reliance by the Central Florida
Expressway Authority only.

By:



STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF

RELEASE

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared
as of Chickasaw Property, LLC, a Florida limited liability company,
authorized to do business in the State of Florida ("Affiant"), who after being first duly swom,
deposes and says upon oath as follows:

1. Affiant is the owner of property located at S.R. 408 with frontage on Chickasaw
Trail that was sold by the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority as surplus property on
or about June 9, 1997,via Special Warranty Deed recorded at O.R. Book 5275,page264 ("the
Property"). Affiant acquired the property on or about _ via

2. FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt and sufficiency
of which is hereby acknowledged, Affiant, on behalf of itself and on behalf of all and each of the
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns (hereinafter referred to as "Releasots")
hereby remise, release, acquit, satisfy, and discharge the Central Florida Expressway Authority
and its predecessor the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority, including its officials,
board members, directors, attorneys, agents, servants, employees, successors, and assigns, of and
from any and all manner of action and actions, cause and causes of action, suits, debts, sums of
money, accounts, bills, specialties, covenants, contracts, controversies, agreements, promises,

variances, trespasses, insurance policies, agreements, damages, judgments, executions, claims,
demands, prejudgment interest, litigation costs, attomeys' fees, and any and all other claims of
every kind, nature and description whatsoever, known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected,
arising or alleged to have arisen, whether in law or in equity, whether past, present or in the future,
which Affiant ever had, now has, or which any successor, heir or assign of Affiant, hereafter can,

shall or may have, against CFX, for, upon or by reason of any matter, cause or thing whatsoever,
in any way connected with or arising from the sale of the Property on or about June 9,1997.

Affiant

SV/oRNToANDSUBSCRIBEDbeforemethis-dayof-,20|6,by
(name of person), as

(type of authority) for (name of party) who took an oath and
is (circle one) personally known to me or provided the following documentation:

Signature of Notary Public - State of Florida.

)
)

Print or Stamp Name of Notary Public



P¡cparcd By ¡nd Rcû¡rn To:

Dcborah II. Johnson, P.A.
Bro¡d r¡d C¡sscl
Ba¡n¡a Bank Center
P.O. Box 4961
Orl¡ndo, Floride r28ü24%l

For Ræortin¡ h¡!Do$! Otrly

TUhû FlorthEl?Ð SFECIAL T¡YâßRANTY DPM

THIS Ib[DEl.tTtJRE, made and executcd thc gttr day of June,l9Pl, by ORL/INIX)-
ORANCD COt ÌfIY EI(PRESSII'AY AIITAORITY, a public corporation of tbc Ståtc of
Floride, whose taxpayer identification nr¡mber is 59-1021557 aú whosc addræs ¡s 525 South
lfi¡gnoli¡ Avcmæ, Orlando, Florida, 32801, hereinaftcr rcferrod to as 'Grantor,r to E. G.
BAI{KS, whoæ tEx p¡yer identification numbcr is a¡d whosc addres¡
is 5 Shadow lárc, Iv!¡itland, Florida, }nil, hereinafur called üe "Grantecn.

WIlNESSETII¡

IIIAT tùe Granûor, for and in conside¡ation of the sr¡m of Ten Dolla¡s ($10.æ) a¡d
othsr v¡lr¡able consider¡tion, receipt whcrcof is hereby acknowledged, hcrcby gr¡nts, bargainr,
ælls, aliens, rcmisês, releases, oonyçys and confirms unto thc Grantce, all that certain land
sihutc in Orange Comty, Florid¡, to-wit:

SEE ETHIBN XA'' ATTACHED IISRETO AI{D
INCONFONATED HEREIN BY NüS REMRDÌ{CE.

PARCET IDENTTFICATTON NTIMBER: NONE

TOGEIIIER with all the þncmonts, hercdibments rnd rppurænanccs therco belogging
or in enyrvise rppertainiqg.

T0 HAVBAIiID TO IIOIÐ, thc same in fcc simplc forwcr.

Al{D the Gr¡¡tor hsrcby covt¡r¡trts with said Gr¡ncc th¡t Grantor witl w¡¡¡ant and

*ç4 Qc nmf,cny hcreby conveycd agrinst the l¡wfr¡l shims and dsnr¡ds of ¡ll pcrsons

:t¡¡Bqg by, through, or undc¡ Granbr, but against nonp otbr and th¡t tbc prcrnis irc tec
from ¡ll wunbnrc cxacpt for m¡tten of ¡cord; providcd, rcfe¡em theúo sh¡ll not $rrc
O rcinporc nrc.

lat¡ao¡6¡çg¡¡1*l-r.r\DH,l¡t¡6.0tA
9tW.lt:l¡b

Or¡noe Go FL t997:Oef687f

8n'å!l=*äsJå'{Ë ?,?,o

.l

:
I
I

I
I

.:

I



:.:

81"31.?flI'Br€frF'

Fcnærdlf h¡prO¡ly

AI.ID by acceptance of this deed the Grantee acknowlodges and agrces that this
sowqtanoc is bcrtrg m¡dc 'as-isn and'whe¡r-isn, without r€,presenhtiotr or wananty exoept as

providod herein.

IN WIITESS WHEREOF, the said Grantor h¡s signcd and sealed tbe prescnc the day
and ¡'ear fi¡st above wrinen.

Signd, scrlod and dclivcrcd
in lbÊ pruscnce of:

Grl¡lb)

OWCOI'Ntr
EXPRESSWAY, e publlc eorloraüon of
thc Statc of Xlorid¡

A. ruCH, Ch¡tm¡n

I

(Èbrb)

STATE OF FIORIDA
COTJNTY OF ORANGE

ThÊ foægoing instri¡nefi was acknowledged bcforc me this #-day of fuæ, 1997,
by A. Wayæ Rich, æ Chairmn of Orl¡ndo-Onnge County Bxprcssway Auüority, a pubtic
corporation of the St¡G of Flo¡ide, on bchalf of said corporation, who is personallv knosrn to
g!Ê or brs prc&ccd as ide¡rtiñc¡tion.

ofmffifu'\..2/ þ.e$nrv tÈ¡reh¡¡ftr1¡
ñn-n A, bre¡
CDbcd na# of Noury tó¡ti.l

Notar¡' hblic, St¡b of
Conmission

a

llutt.Ûtmlstnrut\t.t4ltDiltutrot A
9?E-tl:llo 2

My comniseionøçires: { ool



0R Bk 5Êt75
0rangr Co FL t

Ps Ê6e
997-æt6t7t

Rr¡srd[h¡¡pO¡Ð

- ll¡rtha O. Heynùe

EXEIBTT ''A"

A portion of Section-25, Torvnship 22 South, Rangc 30 East, onnge county, Florida, norcparticnlarly dêscribed as follows:

commcæe at tlc Northwæt comlr of thc sout[wæt ll of s¡id section 2i; thense s. E9o5g,4ooE. aloqg tbe North linc of said sor¡thwest l4 for so.oo rca;-ttcncc s. 00o22'4En E. for 450,E2foato tte Northwesarly Limitd Access Rigbtof-lvayi¡"r 
"rt¡r 

B¡sr-west Exprcssway (sbrc
lg$-Nt, 40E) æ sto¡p_go.rhs Rightor.fuay Malñproje$ 75(nE-útl0-101; rücæc N.
11'!?'g-l ttoog said LinitGd nõess nighí-or-tr;ayl¡*-iot t76.67 ftet ro rhs poINT oFBTgIPInqlgd tsht lyiag on thÊ East ñ¡g¡t-or-w.i r¡* of chick¡saw Trail as show¡ on
ltitt Rigbtof-way Maq l9r project 7500g-óftotot; rnåncc u. o4os5'29" w. rrong said Easr
!ig$'o-f-Sray linc for 573.9s feeq tbcncc N. 05"16;13;s¡. rtoog s¡¡¿ p¿st n¡gntorWay rincfor 74.58 fecg t[cnoe N.79"21't2o E. for 3E6.56 feeq tbg;; S. 10"3g'3Eo E. for ZL4.gzfætto said Northwescrly L¡mibd Acccss Right-of-trray line; thcnce s. 3go23,36" w. along saidNorthcrly Limitcd Acccss Rigbt-of.Way tine for Stiø.gg r6ito rhc pOINT OF BEG¡INNINC.

Containing 4.t75 asrcs, motÊ or less.

lEìlûaSWlUUllt t ttl.t4ilD¡üll¡m.0n97m-ll:l¡to 3

,î'. '



ton & hdcCulloh
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
,'vww.clayton-mccu 

I loh.com

Pr\tll. S. \YEST
A(torncy & Counselor at Larv
pswest@clayton-mcoullo h.com

Chyton & lVlcCulloh, P. A,
Servicing 25 C()üntiûs

Respond to: Orla¡do Office

April4,2016

Linda Brehmer Lanosa, Esq,
Deputy General Counsel
Central Florida Expressway Authority
4974 ORI-Tower Road
Orlando, FL32807
Phone: (407) 690-5000
Direct: (407> 690-5382
FAX: (407) 690-5434
E-Mail : Linda.Lanosê@CFXWay.conr

Re: Request for Release of phosphate, minerals, metals and petroleum rights

Ms Lanosa:

As we have discussed over the phone, please accept this e-mail with attachments as our
official request that the Central Florida Expressway Authority, successor to the Orlando-Orange
County Expressway Authority, a public corporation of the State of Florida, pursuant to Section
348.753(2)(a), Florida Statutes, (hereafter "Autlrority") execute the attached Release (Exhibit
*A").

Th.ç Bçquesf:
As mentioned above, rrye are requesting that the Authority execute the attached Release

(Exhibit "A").

The Issue:
Section 270,110), Florida Statutes states: "(l) Unless the applicable agency chooses not

to reserve such inlerest and except as otherwíse provided by law, in sll cantracts and deeds þr
the sale of land executed by the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund or by
øny local government, water mønagement district, or other agency of the state, there shqll be
reservedþr such local government, watet'monagement district, other agency of the state, or the
board of trustees and its successors an undivided three-þurths ínterest in, qnd title in and to øn
undívided three-þurths interest in, all lhe phosphate, minerals, and metals thst are or may be in,
on, ol under the saíd land snd an undivided one-half interest in all the pe*oleum that is or may
be in, on, or under said land v,ith the privilege to mine and develop the same,"

On June 9, 1997, the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority, a public corporation
of the State of Florida, as Grantor, executed that certain Special Wananty Deed to E.G. Banks,
Grantee, said deed being recorded on June 17, 1997 in Official Records Book 5275, at Pages 264
through 266, inclusive, of the Public Recorcls of Orange County, Florida, (hereafter "The Deed")
conveying the following described property, to wit:

Orlalrdo Ollice:
Tlte Clayton &McCulloh Builcling
I û65 Maitl¿nd Ccrrtcr Conrmons Blvd.
Mailland, l:L 37751
Phonc: (407) 875-2655
Frrx: (407) 6ó0-49ti9

Page I of5

Toll Þ-ree: (888) 793-1486

ò{ell¡ourne Ol'lice: SuntreelViera
Eaytree Corporate Park

l34l Bedford Drivc, Suite A
Melboume, FL32940

Phone: (32 l) 751-]449
Fax: (321) 751-1450



Commence at the Northwest corner of the Southwest % of said Section 25; thence
S 89"58'40" E along the North line of said Southwest % for 50,00 feet; thence S
0022'48" E for 450.82 feetto the Northwesterly Limited Access right of way line
of the East-West Expressway (State Road No. 408) as shown on the right of way
map for Project 75008-6410-l0l; thence N 35'09'44" E along said Lirnited Access
right of way line tbr 176.67 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, said point lying
on the East right of way line of Chickasaw Trail as shown on said right of way
map for Project 75008-6410-101; thence N 04"55'29" W along said East right of
way line for 573.98 feet; lhence N 05"16'13" W along said East right of way line
74.58 feet; thence N 79'21'22" E for 386.56 feet; thence S 10o38'38" E far 254.t2
feet to said Northwesterly Limited Access right of way line; thence S 38o23'36" W
along said Northerly Limited Access right of way line for 596.93 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING,
Containing 4.175 acres, more or less.
also known as
Comrnence at the Northwest corner of the Southwest % of said Section 25; thence
S 89o58'40" E along the North line of said Southwest % for 50.00 feet; thence S
00o22'48" E for 450.82 feet to the Northwesterly Limited Access right of way line
of the East-West Expressway (State Road No. 408) as shown on the right of way
map for Project 75008-8410-101; thence N 35o09'44" E aiong said Limited Access
right of way line for 1.76.67 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, said point lying
on the East right of way line of Chickasaw Trail as shown on said right of way
map for Project 75008-8410-101; thence N 04o55'29" W along said East right of
way line for 573.98 feet; thence N 05o16'13" W along said East right of way line
74,58 feet; thence N 79'21'22" E for 386.58 feet; thence S 10o38'38" E lor 254.02
feet to said Northwesterly Limited Access right of way line, thence S 38o23'36" W
along said Northwesterly Limited Access right of way line for 598.93 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING
(hereaft er "Properfy").

Inasmuch as the applicable agency, (i.e. the Authority) failed to express their choice not
to specifically reserve, in the Deed, their interest in and to "phosphate, rninerals, metals andlor
petroleum" rights in the Property, this interest continues to clouc{ the title to the Property. My
client, Chickasaw Properties, LLC, successor in interest to E.G. Banks, cannot sell the Property
free of this cloud without the recordation of the Authority's Reiease of these rights.

The Argument(s):
I. While providg4. by súatute. it was neyeLthç intent of the Autho{ify to reserve this
statu-torJ-jqterest in the prop-e-ffy sold via public sale.

A. I have thoroughly reviewed the public records file delivered to the undersigned on or
about Februerl 9,2016 by Ms Vicki McElroy, Central Florida Expressway Authority Public
Records, over the Authority's public sale of "Parcel 1û1-14l." Nowhere in this exhaustive file is
there mention of the Authority's intent to reserve these "phosphate, minerals, metals andlor
petloleum" rights in the Property.

II. Documentation regarding the Authofj.tfþ.ppprqvalaf offering of Property for.public
sale: All aspects of the approval process demonstrate that the Authority determined that the
Property constituted "Surplus" property to be sold at public sale.

B. After over a year of exploration and study, it was determined that the Property
constituted "surplns" pl'operty and would be offered for public sale. [see attached letter from
Harold Worrall, Executive Director of the Authority, dailed 12/13/1996, whereby it was noted

Page 2 of 5



that the Right-of-Way Commiüee agreed with the staff proposal and recommended that the
Authority declare the Property to be surplus property and allow it to be sold by public sale in
accordance with established procedures (copy of letter is attached hereto as Exhibit "8")."1

C. The Authority sought approval of the public sale fi'om the Department of
Transportation (hereafter the "Department"), [see attached letter ûom Harold Worrall, Executive
Director of the Authority, dated l2l30l I 996 (copy of letter dated 12/20/ 1996 is attached hereto as
Exhibit "c"),]

D. The firm engaged the Authority reported that the Property "is surplus
and added]." [see
attached letter from Mike R. Bierma, P.8., GEC Program r€ctor f,rrm of
Post, Buckley, Schuh & Jernigan,Inc., dated llI4l1997 (copy of letter
attached hereto as Exhibit "D").1

t1t4/1 97 is

E. District General Counsel of the Depaltment concun'ed "in the surplus sale of the
subject land. [see attached letter from George S, Lovett, Esq., District General Counsel of the
Department, dated 3/10/1997 (copy of letter dated 3/10/1997 is attached hereto as Exhibit *8").1

III. Documentation rqgefding fhe sale: All aspects of the sale demonstrate that the Authority
always intended to deliver 'clean' title and never intended to retain residual "phosphate,
minerals, metals and/or petroleum" rights in the Property.]

F. From the very onset of marketing the public sale of the Property, the Authority
informed the public that "Title sliall be conveyed by special würanty deed." fsee attached Legal
Notice of Sale of Surplus Property as adverlised in The Orlando Sentinel an419/1997 (copy of
legal notice is attached hereto as composite Exhibit *F").1

G. The form required by the Authodty for the public to submit sealed bids provides for,
inter alia, the firllowing: a) the bidder to select whether or not title insurance is being requested;
b) the disclosure that closing is to take place at the law office of Broad and Cassel, presumably
the agent for the Authority [see attached 'Sealed Bid for Excess Property' submitted by the
successful bidder of the Property, dated 412411997 (eopy of Sealed Bid is attached hereto as
Exhibit "G").1

H. The buyer's attorney submitted to the Authorþ's attorney a cashisr's check for
5162,306.20 to consummate the closing and to authorize the same to be disbursed ... "... in
accordance with First American Title Insurance Company Commitment#97.01464." indicating
buyer's legal counsel's reliance upon same [see attached letter from Marvin L. Beaman, Jr,, F.sq.,

buyer's le[al counsel, to Broad and Cassel, attorneys for Authority, dated 611011997 (copy of
letter dated 611011997 is attached hereto as Exhibit "H").1

I. The title insurance commitment referenced in Paragraph (H) hereinabove, and issued by
Authority's legal counsel, committed to insure the title without making any mention of the
Authorþ's intent to retain these'þhosphate, minerals, metals and/or petroleum" !n th9 ltqpg$y
[see attaóhed First American Titlelnsuiance Cornpany Commitment#97.01464, dated 61311'997

(copy of title commitment is attached hereto as Exhibit "I").1

J. The Authority, by and through A. Wayne Rich, "Chaiman of the Orlando-Orange
County Expressway Authority" executèd an Affidavit to "induce the Buyer to purchase the
Propeity" wherein he affirmed under oath, inter alia, the following: *I do not know of ... any
othêr lièn or encumbrance of any kind or nature whatsoever which constitutes a lien, charge or
encumbrance on the Property ...t'¡see attached Owner's Affidavit dated619/1997 (copy of

Page 3 of 5



affidavit dated 619/1997 is attached hereto as Exhibit "J").1

K. The Authority, by and through A. Wayne Rich, "Chairman of the Orlando-Orange
County Expressway Authority" executed that certain Special War:ranff Deed dated 61911997, and
recorded in Official Records Book 5275, at Page 264, of the Public Records of Orange County,
Florida, whereby the Authority affirmed under oath, inter alia, the following: "... the Grantor [i.e.
the Authorityl hereby covenants ... that Grantor will wanant and defend the property hereby
conveyed against the lawful claims and demands of all persons çfqipiRg by, llrrqugh, or untler
Grantor, [emphasis added] ,., and that the premises are free from all encumbrances except for
matters of record..." [see attached Special Wauanty Deed dated 6/911997 (copy of Special
Wan'anty Deed is attached hereto as Exhibit "K").]

L. Had the Authority intended to reserve these "phosphate, minerals, metals and/or
petroleum" rights in the Property, the Authority's legal counsel (i.e. the law firm of Broad and
Cassel) would have expressly stated such reserations as an exception from coverage on the
Owner's Policy of Title Insurance issued by the Authority's legal counsel under Schedule B,
Special Exceptions, Paragraph T,nther than stating that there were "None" special exceptions to
the title of the Property however, said legal counsel for the Authority did not do so [see attached
Own€r's policy of title insurance issued by Authority's legal counsel, Broad and Cassel, and
underwritten by First American Title Insurance Co., under Policy No.: FA'35-120426, with an
effective date of June 17,,1997 at 10:31 A.M. (copy of Title Policy is attached hereto as Exhibit
ooL").1

IV It is a matter of nublic policy that the sovernment.p.l.hgfly. {e.g..the Authority) not create
an.9.ll-c.un0brgnce o4Jeal B.Lopertv in situations like this.

M, On or about 10116/1967, the Department quit claimed previously acquired property
'ofor uss for state highway purposes" to Cumber Land Company after it was determined that the
described land "is no longer required for said pu{poses, and the State Road Department has no
furtlrer use of said land for any purpose." Nearly thirty (30) years later on 1212411996, the
Department, when it was detennined that the Depaftment had the same statutory resewations to
thosç described lands as the Authority ostensibly has in the Property, the Department executed an
Affidavit wherein it stated, inter alia, that "[t]he pulposes of the above-referenced reservations dq
not, and are not intended to create any.encumbrance or estate upon real prop.gr.ty- adjacent
to.qr in proximity to the interstnte highway syQlg-m., [emphasis added] ..," [see attached Quit
Clairn Deed, dated 10/1611967, and recorded on 10/31/1967,in Official recotds Book 113, at
Page 487 et. seq., the attached Disclaimer, dated I 0/ I 61 1967 , and recorded on 10/3 1/ 1967 , in
Official records Book 113, at Page 494 et, seq., and its attached Affidavit, dated 12124/1996, and
recorded an 12/3I/7996, in Official records Book 1215, at Page 622 et. seq., all of the Public
Records of St Joh:rs County, (copies of said Quit Claim Deed, Disclaimer and Affidavit are
attached hereto as Composite Exhibit *M").]

V, In Summary, the Authority determined that it had no continuing interest in the Property and
that the same should be treated and sold as "Surplus" land. The Authority expressly demonstrated
in every reasonable rneans possible from its public notice of sale to the consururration of the
actual sale of the Property that it was offering to sell the Property for cash in accordance with the
requirements set forth in the title comnútment stating that there ate no specifìc exceptions
applied to the Property, and that by the affidavit of the Chairman of the Authority, and as an
inducement for a buyer to purchase the Properly, that there was nci indication of any lien, or
reservation of lien rþhts whatsoever, the same being conoborated by the Authority's conveying
the Property by a Special Warranty Deed, confirming the Authority's covenant to watrant and
defendthe title to the Property against any and all claims and demands of all persons claiming
by, through or under the Authority, and that the Property is free and clear of all encumbrances.

Page 4 ofS



By nowhere stating that the Authority intended to reserve the "phosphate, minerals, metals and/or
petloleum" rights in the Propel'ty, expressly or implicitly, and by providing the buyer an Owner's
Policy of Title Insurance stating that there were no special exceptions to the title of the Property,
the Authority clearly, and convincingly, never intended to reserve these rights.

Therefore, the undersigned attorney hereby respectfully requests that the Authority
execute the Release of said "phosphate, minerals, metals andlor petroleum" rights in the
Property, attached hereto as Exhibit "A."

Paul S est
Attorney &. Counselor at Lav,
c/o Clayton & McCulloh, P.A.
1065 Maitland Center Commons Blvd.
Maitland, FL3275l
Phone: (407)875-2655
Facsimile: $AT 660-4989

PSW:lsg
attachments: as described hereinabove

Page 5 of 5



EXHIBIT

A
Prepared by:
Paul Stanley West, Esq.
Attorney & Counselor at Law
c/o Clayton & McCulloh, P.A.
1065 Maitland Center Commons Blvd.
Maitland, FL 32751

RELEASE AFFIDAVIT

Before me, the undersigned authority, duly authorized to take acknowledgments and administer
oaths, personally appeaied the Central Florida Expressway Authority, ("Affiant"), by 11rd through
its undersigned authbrized signatory, who, after being by me first duly sworn, depose(s) and
say(s) that:
i. Affiant is successor to the Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority, a public
corporation of the State of Florida, pursuant to Section348.753(2)(a), Florida Statutes.
2. Ãffia*, by and through its undersigned authorized signatory, fo. and in consideration of the
sum of ($10.00¡ fEN and 00/100 DOLLARS and other valuable consideration, in hand this dty
paid, the receipi and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, hereby releases any and a!!
ieservations, rlght and title it might have pursuant to Section?7}.ll(1), Florida Statutes, in all
the phosphate, minerals, metals and petroleum that may be in, on, or únder the below described
land puriuant to that certain Special Warranty Deed executed on or about June 9, t?27 Ay
Orlando-Orange County Expréssway Authority, a public corporation of the State of Flori{a, a¡
Grantor,.to E.G. Banks, Grantee, recorded on or about June 17, 1997 in Official Records Book
5275, at Pages 264 tluough 266, inclusive, of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida, to
wit:

Commence at the Northwest comer of the Southwest 7¿ of said Section Z1;thence S 89o58'40" E
along the North line of said Southwest % for 50.00 feet; thence S 00o22'48" E for 450.82 feet to
the Ñorthwesterly Limited Access right of way line of the East-West Expressway (State Road
No. 408) as shown on the right of way map for Project 75008-6410-101; thence N 35o09'44" E
along said Limited Access right of way line for 176.67 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, said
point lying on the East right of way line of Chickasaw Trail as shown on sa-id right of way_ma-p,

ibr Projeci 75008-6410-101; thence N 04"55'29" W along said Eastrightof way li¡9 for 573.98
feet; thence N 05o16'13" W along said East right of way line 74.58 feet; thence N 792I'22" E for
386.56 feet; thence S 10o38'38" E for 254.02 feet to said Northwesterly Limited Access right of
way line; thence S 38o23'36u V/ along said Northerly Limited Access right of way line for 596.93
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.
Containing 4.175 acres, more or less.
also known as
Commence at the Northwest comer of the Southwest % of said Section 25; thence S 89o58'40" E
along the North line of said Southwest % for 50.00 feet; thence S 00o22'48" E for 450.82 feet to
the Ñorthwesterly Limited Access right of way line of the East-West Expressway (State Road
No. 408) as shown on the right of way map for Project 75008-8410-101; thence N 35o09'44" E
along said Limited Access right of way line for 176.67 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, said
point lying on the East right óf way line of Chickasaw Trail as shown on said righl of^waymap
ior Project 7500S-8410-101; thence N 04o55'29" W along said East right of way line for 573.98
feet; tlrence N 05o16'13" W along said East right of way line 74.58 feet; thence N 79oZl'22" E for
386.58 feet; thence S 10o38'38" E for 254.02 feet to said Northwesterly Limited Access right of
way line, thence S 38o23'36" W along said Northwesterly Limited Access right of way line for
598.93 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

3. All recording references set forlh herein are to the Public Records of Orange County, Florida,
unless otherwise noted.
4. "Affiant," include singular or plural as context so requires or admits.



{:l

'H''
5. This Release Affrdavit is given for the pulpose of clearing any possible question or
to the title to the above referenced property and, for the purpose of inducing Community
Association Title, Inc, and Old Republic National Title lnsurance Company to issue title
insurance on the subject properry, with the knowledge that said title companies are relying upon
the statements set forth herein.

6. This Release Affidavit was approved by the Board of the Central Florida Expressway
Authoritybyavoteof-afterapublichearingdulyadvertisedregardingthe
foregoing.

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have read the foregoing Release and that the
facts stated in it are true,

Dated this _,2016
Central Florida Expressway Authority

[witnesses and acknowledgment]



æAUTgONTTY

MEMORANDt'M

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

a t
ORLANDO. ORANGE COUNTY
12' SOUTII MAONOLIA AVENUE.
ÎÊLEPltOI\¡e 140?¡ 425.S606

ORLANÐO. FUOnID^ 3280t-44t{
r^x ({07} 6{9-8t04

Authoriw Memb.øs

"-"^,i,iW"/4
December 13,1996

SUBJECT: SurplusProperty
Parccl 1-l4I

A requesthas bæn recaived that lhe subje.ct property (sketch and legal desøiption attncherl) be
deolared nurplus by the Authority and advertis€d for public sale, in confomity wíth o¡tablished
proccùues.

rcvicwby
BCIOrl

use

The Rigüt-of.Wby Committee.agreer rvíth the proposal and rwommends the Authority declare
tho dessribed parcæl as surplus and sllo\¡/ that it be sold by publio sale, at no less thm the
appraiæd value plus appraisal cosf i¡ accotdnnce with established pocedures,

Í{WWCC$:dm
Att¿chmcnt

cc; Cha¡lcs Sylvester
ConsentAgenda
Puc€l Fílç

ñ{urATilÊ n¡ctr
Clul¡m¡n

S¡IIJJÀT{ À IEC(É17
ll¿¿ dr¡lman

tìtE¿J.¡,o¡tc I.ITIDAÍ'.CNAPff
É( Of,dô Mùnòrû

O¡utge Coun¡l

I{AßCÍ tr,ÍoUSmil
E¡ OlTloJo ire¡l'lú

trÀ[oÐtY,wonsüJr P,&
Ë\últtlvc öïeciof

Floilda oop¿¡ñc/.t
Tiar'É,,p/'f,tot

6êõ¿ôtoy/7l6á3ure¡
Òt



Lt t
ORLANDO. ORANGE € UNTY
t2J solrlH MAONoLÍ^ 

^VENUa, 
oRLA¡¡DO. FLOnIDA l2t0¡.¡t4t4

T8r,EP|{OatS t4{t?} 41r-8ô0ô

December 30,1996

Itfs, Nancy Houston, Secretary

SihDisfíct
Florida Departrent of Transportatiou
719 S. WoodlandBlvd'
Dslan6FLlnzO

Re: OOCEÁ' Surplus Property
Parcel l-l4l

DearNanoy:

t 
En"losed is a copy of tho legal description, sketch and other portinent informadon

pertaíning to the subject parcel whicl is conside¡ed sutplu$ ta ths needs of the Auttroríty and will
6e processed for public t te

The property was originally purchasedas aremarnder of ptoperty neÊded to consüucta
portion of the extension of the Holland Exprossway between Goldenrod Rosd and Colonial Drive
(SR 50), tt Êonts on and has access to CbickasawTraíl. Rightof-way necessary fot firíre
widening of Chickæaw Traíl by Orange County has already been acquired on the west side of
Chickasaw

Sincerel¡

+-r,-r,lliluJtu*(
HaroldW.Wonall
Executive Director

H.{[r$/:dm
Attåchments

co! Charles Sylvester
Mike Bierma wlattachmsnts

ÀtÀtm rucR
Chúrt¡¿t

E¡¡nO¡¿S.W0t¡¡l¡tå
ã¡udl¿ Dúcoer

v/rLLrA¡rá.8Pct(ETT ¡llEzttÁf{c u¡rD^w.caÀln{ il^ÍGrü.f,o1ß'l0ll"-vlæ-at¿hnÁi llæalnry!fter.r.w,r Êt orf,dö ,&n¿Ët ât dtdo Mønfu- Onrya &tnty FI('Ha Oa,d'ünaûol
l+antwltüâ,

Ì.8.



ffig POST,
BUCKLET
scHuH &
|I,RN|GAN, tNC.

January 14,1997

Ha¡oldlV. Wona[ P.E,

Executive Director
Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority
525 South Magnolia Avenue
Orlandq FL 3280r

Re; OOCÉA Sale of Remna¡t Property
Project 101 Parcet l-l4l

DearMr. ïlronall:

Wehave reviewed the âbove montioned pucel proposed for sals the

J ENGINE€,$Nq
PLANNTNG

In our
that p-s*ian-sfjhis propefty that is proposed for sslsffiffiw

¿rre&¿j,&øl-

Furthemrore, in our opinior, tho Authority ¡s in full compüance urith the requirements of Sectíon 3.05

ofthe Senior Lien Bond Master Resolution and will continue to be in compliance afler the proposcd

sale.

Sincerely,

POST, BUCKLEY, SCHUHE JERNIGAI.I" INC.

MikeR Bierma"P.E
GEC ProgramDireotor

MRB:syc

cc:

lt\t?ÂNs\00cßAIBl!RMÀ\L10t t497¡¡A

File

ËxHrBtlp

1560 ORANÕÉ AvENuE. süm ?0O. Wr.ÍÉ.R PARK, TLORIDA ¡X789.5:144 . f€ltPHONsr {ô?/647-7273



v t

,:ill ii $ I !|'iÏ'+;1ii' liìilii:h:

i.J 'ã !:C ¿ I êÏ:; i-:i

..* ji. r..
' ""; ' i 'ì: ""' "'t "

FLORIDA I}EPARTMENTOF
L.{lyr(Àtlcxnø¡l
G{¡VERNOR

?19 Sodh W¡Édbd ¡ûdm¡d Þçl¡¡d, !lalôt?¡r0 BII{ G, WAT¡8
89CARr,ÀtY

-
offÍce of the General CouneeL
7L9 s. Woodland Boulevard
DeI¡and, Florida 3272t
(904) 943-s4e0

March 10, L997

Mr. Ilarold I{. tÍorrall
Orlando-Orânge CounÈy Erçreseway Authority
525 South Magrrolia Avenue
Orlando, FL ?29A7-4414

Re: ooCEA Surplus ProPorEY
Þarcel 1-141

Ðear Ms. Worral]-¡

Pleaee accept Ehís letber as Ehe Deparbment's concurrence i.n
the surplus éale

Pl-ease conlact me at the Eelephone number ahove lf I may
provide any addiÈ,ional documentation.

SÍncerelv ) . I

É^;st6WÁ
é-"ùg{ s. r,ovett{/ tá"q.
OJ.sfrLcC General Counsel
Digt,ri-ct Five

cc: Nancy M. Houston



tÊ$öl 3rt€6¡
ñ.út!.'
cgefrlot&

l0l tuülr ¡fìior.

P, qa|le:

i{rdaßr?.

>
N

rcL-4.åe9,8!u.
frcg op 8aL8-ft{Ê c¡Rcuft cduñl
ilH-É 8na JuDrc¡^L¡cuf. li¡ ÁN0 FoR
ìÄNoE coulifv,
3lto. c' n*to'.6*Û FÉOERÁL

úüt
w. waFß, gl

AlÂ!.0,rBff

lnoua¡ndgo¡tif¡
l$ uzusmuces

¡lsalr.

trmüPfû?

qllforB i{!rË

¡ntrnô çlld lø ltlÉrllûItlüo
Ëd¡¡. + Êdrl '

t-AoÛ.ãt.¡|'¡{¡ O.todÖàl' ÀrsÊ t &ric.r

¡

o rrè8
üDOnF! Yout l¿lâ
I w mdrlnd ot
. i!ÁDii¡rt to 6dþ-

Plw. .¿o.î¿l¿ao.õ.b3É.d.
P¡r.Èæ Íw Fí&Y
1o øæ¡1. nd,Ûd!,rlr c alr.{ffd cd

I
a

I
¡gOl'e t[dt7'fûpcaupo¡¡ 'Pu[oeS oputlÍO a¡1 0]'J



É

d,nSAü ffi[ICÉ OF Såf,E Of S¡tRPf,gS PnOPEnnf

tsûlcc ¿b ne¡o¡ry g.l,rrsn that ncel.d bItu !t1lL.bc rccclved by
¿¡" olíÀãCõ/õrnii" cãuitv ExË¡rçsÉrây _ArrthorJ.ty. unt"ll !9t09 a:F.'
iril.I-ãl .-íi¡2,""t-tuC ö'o'ê.E.l. ót¡toe lecãtGd cü f2ã sollth
ffiõããrlå å'""t "' orl¡rndor {g" th: purchaea "f t egPl!:--P=::1^9I
läñ¡; f¡or¡ ¿p Èarcel f'l-l|l of È,he ta¡t-llest Ërpresarryr DroJèct
101- 

i
llhe tregal derlr{PôLon ia¡
å. ûrÉ¡.on of beetlon ãS¡ l3orvuohíB l? Bouth¡ xange l0 Eaet¡ orangr
ti"ñnty, pfòif¡U lorc ¡rerticulrr$ degerlb€d a¡ tolls.'e¡

Oor!ûÐrse at tle north$ÉËË öornsr ol the Souühveet l/{ of m{d
ñõãio¡-¿íi tñãnqã-slsg iltgT*g¡,.5!¡40"8. +?lg-tåê lÍorìh l1ne of
;àfÅ-Str¡tbileet Llr tot 50.õO fcåù; thenoe S.O0-deqreelr-?2'18:8.
¡or ¿¡o-e2 fcEt to thc trorth*erterly f,lolt€ð accêtÉ_rught'-ot-Tay
fGe of, the B¡et-tIeB¿ BrIDE€llray (state Ko¡d tfo. l0E! ae ebawu nn

m*lgl-;i{;Iî{.Tt"Í?';:fittrh,l:g'Håå!xllt':Fl$lJiÍ1"'"=
rãõlez-icãt to Ghc ForÑr oF f,Ecrmrmo¡ anid poinË lytng 91 !+ê-
ña¡t-niEtt-ot*ay ll:cr g!_ÇÞfqt+fo Irell rr ¡hotn on raid Right-
ãi:r"r Ëp iãr äersût ?3008-6r10--101;-ttense ll.0l {9s:eee,
ii'àõtw-. itoog sstå rr¡t Rtght-of-tlay ll¡¡e lsr S?3.90_l9ct;- 

-ãi.iã."i.0¡-ãËci¡êr,-fõ;fg'É, .torrg Ë¡ld B¡st RÍght-of,-llay- li¡¡e
¡ã-i¡,ie-rcetí ih.åc" N"!9 dsgreoã. Zl'zZ"E. troi 396-'56 feot¡
tnã"àc S,10 dösrcàr, 30't8'8. ior 2i1.02 frlt to ¡aid
üñh.-"åsrfv-ü¡¡itåd,Eace"s f,tght-of-rry ltae¡ thsnoa S.39
ã;;ñ;;-iã;i¡;w' alons saLd lofohweeüerly r,íxited åÊq€t¡ tight-
õi:H¡t itnr¡ frrr 596-93-f,oot to thc POIIW OE EEGI¡INIHG'

.¿
Íhe aboço dsec¡fbad ¡uoel o! lerd líaa ln tlrtngê cou¡ttyt

florLd¡r and cþntal,na l.l?5 ecresr ßrEÊ on 16sÉ'

xhe drrlu btd
deacrfted proþrü1' fu

One! Eu¡dred Flvc shouta¡rd a¡d no/Ioo Doll¡rs
fgLofr00o'00)

æ

¡so¡¡t ttr bt sonlldclad fat the rbovo
¡

*

U'^n oçh-

EXHIBIT

F - b,ti"n]



o

rhe undersiqnEd does harebY
the real própertY described

s

Xx¡( Cagh.Ler,e Cheok _ Money Order for S t7,11.0_.9-Q r
7ÍõEÏ of ths above bíd arnõuntt ls a€tached. f understånd that
È[i"'¿.po"it ls non-refundable if I am the euccessful bldder. tf
*"-uiã i. not acceptedr t'ble deposLt will bs Eeturnêd wÍthln
¡även (?l daye of the bid ofrening date.

ALI sealed bLds r,¡l1l be openod on April 24t L997, at 10;00 A'M'
ät-thé off,Lce of thø or16;1do/orange county ExPressvtf,y Authollty
ax SZS g. Blagnoll'a Avonue, Orlando¡ rlorlda'

8EALED BfD

subnit a bld of, S175,100.00 fo¡
on the attached legaI.

above bld
390 N. o¡ang6

t¡tL

Avenugr
specíal

conveyed by
warrantY dead.

Tarês 6Ëe to be pro-rat€d to date of, closlng. title -Insurance*ifi-¡"-tv"tfiblã at the Buy€rrs Êxpenle if reguested'

îitle rnaurancel

lHE APPRAISAL TEB OF $I,9OO.OO E Àf¡I¡ CÍ'OSTNG COSTS TO BE PAID DY

BUTER.

DAIED;- -Aorfll4--_1 1997.

th

Note: This bíd should bs eealed ín an anvelope addreased-to thé
õ"iÁ"¿oforanqa County Expresgway AuÈhority, 525 S. t{agnolla
Ã;;;u¿;-oiiiñ¿o, rlo?i¿¡- 32s0L'AaL4 and croarrv identlffed with
the followfngl

Soaled Bid tor ßxcees Property
Pareel No. 1-141
East-l{eet E¡rpr€s6way
ProJect No' 101

EXHIBIT

(?

i" åp.qfffid[t.täfr,å rl{'#'f¿üë $ ** 1 7,5 g g. 96**

pn,, *l,l\p¡tI- 23 r 1997*¡t

Pay

to
th3 r* ¡0.0.c ¡8.Á.*r*

Sunflhusr

ÃtdÛl Chscltot

N0,3456636

83.2!€
6lt

SrDtlurl F nh Canûrl Flo¡lds, N.A.
Olrndo, l¡old¡
Romlfldr !! G. Ba¡¡!<q

Kts rsAI'HIS IF BAC



ül
á* *r>" *{ Ø.*r*-r, &., g -ú

ATTORNEI/ATt.AW

ê05 N. WVMORE ROA.E}

WTNTER PAR¡<, F|-oFUDA 9¿7€9289A

&1ð?É.4¿@
FAI( 4o?í¡lor€r4o'e

Deborah Johnson, Eoq.
Broad and Cassel
Suite 1100
390 North Orange Jlve.
OrJ.arrdo, rI 32801

!,IÀRVIN I'.

dlune 10, 199?

of

arR

Rer Orlando-Orange County Expresaway
Àuthorlty/ Surplue Property
Parcel 1-141
Your Flle No. 12842-0001
our FJ.la No. 97-060

Dear Deboraht

fn aceordanee wfth your letter of June 5, 1997, I håve
enclosed a cnshJ.er'e check fn the amount of $1621306.20 together
wLth ths orl"glnal CloËLng SÈatement and DJ.sbursêmênt Sheet,.

are ¿uthorlzed toïou
the clos I

þ

Very I

I
MI'B¡
cc E. Gi. Banks

I
ti

H



L/
Lo

First American Title Insurance Company

o

o

o

O

Agents File No.: 128¡t2-0001

Parcsl No.: l-141

. , .f. r. ... +I

Date tssued; June 3, lggT ' .' .l '

Date Éffective: April30, 1997

4,

RB\ r2S42\000 l\s IIRPLUS\t -t 4l\Dtl¡LLH06.0l I
Yt0603 - 5!53pu¡

SCHEDULE A

o

1 Policy or Pollcies fo be Issued: Amount of Policy: $175110û.00
(a) A.L,T.A. Owner's Policy (t0/17/92) (With Floritla ModiñcatÌons)

Proposed ln¡urèd: :j, D. G. BANITS

O) A.L.T,A, Loan Policy (416190)- {With Florida Modificatlons) $N1A

Proposodlnsured: N/À

The eslate or interest in the land described or rcfened to in thls Commimrent and co:ve¡ed herein
is an æt¿te cr interest desiguated æ follows:

FEB SIMPLÊ

Title to the esÌate or interest in the lafll desribed or tefened to in this Commihnènt ard covered

he¡ein (aud designated as indicated in No. 3 above) is, at tho effective datc hereof, vested in:

ORLANIIO-ORANGE COIJNTÍ P)(PRESS"\ilAY AUTAOruTY, a publlc corporaüon of
the State of Flortda

The tand refened to in this Commihleff is in the State of Flo¡id¡, County of Orange, and

described ss follolos:

SAA NXITIBIT ''A'' ÀT"TACTIDD HERETO AND MADE A PART ÛEREOT.

BROAD AII{D CASSEL

DBBORAII N.
' 

P.A.

Authorlzed Signatory

a
2.

3.

o

t

a

a
1

t



EXHIBIT

a

o

o

o

o

a

o

o

o

a

I

First Arnerican Title Insurance Company

Ágents Filo No.: I2842-t1001

ParceL No,: I-141
Commitnent No.: 97.01464

SCHBDULB B-I
(Requiremente)

The following æe the requircmeils to be complied with:

Payment to, or fof the account of, the grântors or mortgâgors of tlte full consideration for the
ectate or i¡teræi to be insured,

Payment ofall taxes, åssessments, levied ånd assqlsÊd agairut subject prornises, which are due
and payable,

Satisfactory evldencc shâll bo produced that all improvementr and/or repairs or altetatioas thoreto
are completed; tlnt contractor, subcnntractor, tabor and materialmen a¡e all paid in fuIl.

Instruments in imurable form which muet be properly executed, dellvered and ùly filed for
record:

Special Wananty Deed ftom Orlando-Orange County Expressway Auttrority, a public
cor?orât¡on under the laws of the state of Florida, to E.G. Banks, conveylng the land
descdbed in Bxhibit "4".

5. Execution of docuruents as per Real Estate Furchæe Agteement.

EIrID O['SCHEDULE B"I

RSU 2842\0{XU\SURPLUS\I-14 tu)HJI,llH06'01 P
t70603 - t!53Fù

2.

3.

4,

g.

2

a



EXHIBIT

?o

First American Title Insurance Company

Agenæ File No.: 1284?."@01

Parcel No.: 1-141

CommiÍnent No. : 97.01464

a

a

o

o

a

t

a

SCHEDULE B"tr
(Exceptions)

Schedule B of the policy or policies to be fssued will conøin excoptions to the followlng matters unlær
the sasre are disposed of to the satisfaction of the Company.

¡. Defect$, llens, encumbrances, adverse clairns, or other matters, if any, crsatcd, firstappeæing
in the public rscords or atuching subsequent to the effective alate hereof butpdor to üre date the

proposed Insured acqulres for value of record the estate or lntcrest or mortgage thereon covsred

by this Commitment.

2. Stanrl¿rd ExæPtions:

a, Rights or clalms of partiæ in possesrion not showu by the public records.

b. Êncroacbments, overlapr, boundary líne disputes, or olher maltels whích would be

disclosed by an accurate suwey und inspection of the prerrises.

c. Easements, or slsims of easements, not shown by tlrc public ræords,

d, Any lien, or right to a lion, for seryice, Iabor, or mâtcrid heretofore or hereafter

frrnished, imposed by law and not shownby the public rer¡rd¡.

e. Taxes or speclal ossessments which are not shown as existing liens by the publis records,

f. Any clairr that any portion of saìd lands are sovereign lands of tlrc Ståtç of Flotida,
including submarged, filled or atlficially exposed lands and lands acsreted to such lands,

g. Taxes and assessments for the year 1997 and subsequent yoarr.

3, $tandard exceptions (b) and (c) msy bp removed from the policy when a salisfactory rurvey and

surveyot's repoft and irupcction of the premises ïs made.

4. Standard exceptions (a) and (d) rnay be removed upon rsceipt of r salisfactory affidavieindemnity

from the püly shoÌen in title and in possession stäting rå,ho is in possæsion ol tho lands and

whether there aro improvements being rnade ar date of conmitment or contemplated to cômmence

prior to ths daüs of olosing which will not have been paid fsr is full prior to the closíng.

TAXËS:
lg9? Rsal Property Taxe¡ a¡e exempt from taxation while owned by tbe Orlardo'Orange County

Expresswry Autltority.

END OF SCSEDULÉ B.tr

RSU 2842\0001\SttRPLus\1-14 t\DttJlrtr06.0lE
90603 - 5:53Pu

a

ü

3

o



a

a

a

o

o

a

O

o

o

o

EffiIBfT üA|'

À portion of Section 25, Township 22 South, Bange 30 &st, Orange County, Florida, more
particularly described as follows:

Commence ¿t the Northwest conler of the Soutbwest l¿ of said Sectior 25; thence S. 89058'40"
E. along the North line of said Souihwest /¿ for 50.00 feet; thenc¿ S. 00aZZ'48" E. for 450,g2
feet to the Northwestedy Linited Access Right-of-Way line of the East-West Expressway (State
Road No. 408) as shown on the Right-of-Way Map for Project 75008-6410-101; thence N.
35"49"Au E. along said Limited Access Right-of-Slay line for 176.67 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING, said point lying on the Bast Right-of-$/ay line of Chickamw Trail as shown on
said Right-of-Way Map for Project 75008-6410-101; thence N. 04o55'29" IY. along said Easr
Right-of-[ray fine for 573,98 feet; thcnce N, 05o16'13" rff. along said East Right-of.üray üne
for 74.58 feet; thence N.792t'?2' E. for 386.56 fceg thence S. 10o38'38" E. for 254.02 feet
to said Northwestcrly Limited Access Right-of-Way lino; thonce S. 38023'36,' W, along said
Northerly Limited Accesg Right of-Itray line for 596.93 feet to the POINT OF BBGINMNG,

Ç6¡1¿ining 4.175 aores, more or less.

n

EXHIBIT
.-.l.-

o



o

a

a

a

o

a

o

CONDTIIONS

1. ÞEFINITIONS
(a) "Mortgage" moans mortgage, deed of trust or other security instrument. þ) "public
Records" means title records that give constructive notice of mâtters affecting your title
according to the state statutes where your land is located.

2, LATER DEFECTS
The Exceptions in Schedule B " Section 2 may be amended to show any defects, liens or
encumbrances that appear for the first time in the public records or are created or attach
between the Commitment Date and the date on which atl of the Requiromsnls of Schedule
B - Section 1 aremet, t'Ve shall h¿ve no liability.to you because of this amendment.

3. EXISTINGDEFECTS
If any defecb, liens or encumbrancos oxisting at Commitment Date ate not shown in
Schedule B, we may amend Schedule B to show thcm. If we do amend Schedule B to
show these defects, lien$ or cncumbrances, we shall be liable to you according to
Paragraph 4 below unless you knew of this ínformation and did not toll us about it in
writíng.

4, LIMITATICIN OFOUR LIABILITY
Our only obligation is to issue to you the Policy rcfened to in this Comrnitment, when you
have met its Requirements. If we have any liability to you for any loss you incur because
of an c¡ror in this Comrnitmert, ollf liability '¡'iü be limited to ygur actual loss caused by
your relying on this Commitment urhen you actÊd in good faíth to:

Comply with the Requiroments shown in Schedule B - Sectíon I

EJimþqte.with our wtitten consent, any Exceptlons shou¡n in
ScheduleB-Section2-

We shall not be liable for more than the Policy Arnount shown in Schedule A of this
Commitment and our liability is subject to the teffis of the Policy forru to bo issued to you,

5. CLAIMS MUST BB BASED ON THIS COMMNMBNT
Any claim, whethçr or not based on negligence, which you rnay hnve against us concerning
the title to tlrc land must bo based on this Commitrnent and is subjeÆt to its te,ûns.

t

o

ot

o

o

z

EXHIBIT

{ r



o

a

o

a

o

o

a

o

o

owNER'S AF,Tr,p.AyrT

STATEOF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ORANGE

Before me, an officer authorízed to adrninister oaths and take acknowledguents, personally

appeared thîs day A, Wayne Rich, who beirtg by me duly sworn, deposar and seys that:

1. I am the Chairman of the Orlando-Orange County Bxpressway Authority, a publlc

corporatlon of the State of Florida, (the "Authority'). I have been duly authorized by tbe Authotþ to
execute this affidavit, the spæial warranty decd and all other documents necsssâry or desirsble to
consumm¿to tho sale of the property (as delined herein) to E. G. Banko (herea$cr, the "Buyer").

2, The real propsrty located in Orange Coutty, Florida and as ftrther described on Erhlbit
I'A,t atrached hereto ¿ûd íncorporated herein by this reference (the "Ptoperty"), is rü the pareæsion of
the Authoriry and no persol or entþ other than the Authority has, to my knowledge, asserted any clalm

to possession of the Properry or ûny portlon thereof. There are no tcnalrcle¡ or leases affecting the

Property or ary portion thereof.

3, To my knowledge, no work or labor has bæn comrnenoed ot performed o¡ naterials

furnished to, on or about the Property exsept thtt which was fully completed more than ninety (90) dayc

prior to tl¡e date hereof.

4, To my knowledge, there æe no unpaid bills ot indebtedness for any labor done or
m¿terlals furni$hed at âny time upon of in connecùion with the Property which could be ot out of which

could arise atry cÆßtruction lieus âgain$t thc Propêrty or arty pârt tlrercnf.

5, To my knowledge, no Notice to Owner or Claim of Lien as provided in Florid¿ Statutee

7LX.OI et seq., hæ been filed or served wlth lcspect to the Property.

6. The title to the Property hæ not been disputed or Erestioned, and I know of no facts by
reason of which title to or porsession of the Property might be disputed or questioned' or by reæon of
which arry slals to the Property, or any påfi thereof, or any intere,st thereln mÍghl be æserted advcrsely

to the Àuthority.

7, mortgage, judgment, fede,tal tax,

OT

on the Properry, Commiùnent Number 97,01464

(the "Comnibnent") issued in connectlon witlt this transaction.

a

of the above referenced Comrnibnent, and the recording of the deeat from the Authority to the Buyer of
even date herewith, and I herebY covenânt that I bave not executeú or nof OT

8.
encumbrasc¿

RE\r2812\000I\St TPLUS\I-14l$HJlrrI06.0lB
f70ó03 - 3:5lPm

or would atlach t0 the Ptoperty between 30, 1997, ths eff€otive ùle

pennit lhe execution or recording of any irutrument

nÀanw-ms*"rswsm

1

a



c

o

o

o

o

o

a

o

I This affidavit is
Ámerican Tltle l¡rsurauce Company to lnsure the tltle to the hoperty, ¿nd I unde¡stand

HtanyçÆin
¡nd Cæsbl.

be placed upon tbis sffidevit by the afotementioned pnrties, as woll as by the ñrm

FURTHBR AFFTÂNT SAYBTH NAUGTIT.

DATBD the 9th daY of June, 1997.

/rLù\^^,/L.r\
A. \4ÍAYNflRICN

STATEOF FLORIDA
COT}NTY OF ORANGE

The foregoing instnrment was acknowledged before me tJrls 9i.þ. On, of lune, 1997, by
A. Wayne Rich, u¡ho is qg$gqâlly-l<ngsalgÆ or has produced æ identiffcation and

who díd/did rot tako an oath.

TAMMTA. SOYER

My comm EIp, 4¿q¿00¡

R¡blic

8y Ss¡VÉ lns
CìC63990¡l{9.

a

^ó(¡ø¡+nrltl 
Xmm I f oôer l.D,

Ral 2841\000l\sunPtus\ l-141ÞIIJLIJ|06.0 I B

Y/06û1.5:5lpB

(Print Na¡ne)

Not¿ry R¡blic, Ståte of
Commission
My corunitsion oxplres:

a

2

IBIT

T

a

¡



+-

É
Ua

I

o

o

o

o

o

a

o

t

EXIil!ìIT trarr

Iegal Descrlption

A portionof Section25, Township22 South, Range 30 Ëæt, Orange County, Florida, more particularly
describêd a¡ follows:

Comnence ¡t rhe Northwest cörner of the Southwest lr¡ of eaid Section 25; thence S. 89o58'4ûu E. rlong
rhe Nortlr line of t¿id Souttrwest Ø for 50.00 feet; tlrcnce S. 00o22'48' B, for 450.82 feet t0 the
Northwesterly Limited Accæs Right-of-Way line of the ßast-West Exprassway (Sate Road No. 408) as

sho$'n on the Right-of-Way Map for Projeçt 75008-6410-101; thencs N,35o09'M'E, along said Limited
Accese Rigbtof-trIay line for L76,67 lael to the POINT OF BBGINNING, said point lying on the Eæt
Righr.of.Way tinc'bf Chickæaw Trail æ shown on said Right-of-Way Map for Project ?5008-6410-101;

thencc N. 0,1"55'29o V/. along said Ëæt Right-of-V/ay line for 5?3.98 feet; thence N. 05"16'13" W.
along'said East Righeof-Way line for 74.58 feæt; thense N. 7go2l'22" E. for 386.56 feot; thonæ S.

l0o38'38^ E, for 254,02 feet to said No¡thwesterly Limited Access Rlght-of-Way line; thcnco S,

38o23'36'W. along satd Northerþ Lírnited Acccss Right-of-V/ay line for 596.93 feet to the POINT OF
BBoINNINõ.

Coutaining 4.175 acrcs, rnore or lçss.

RË\t28421000 lrst RlI.usll.l4f $HILLS06.0lü
9/0603 - 5:5lpm 3

o

{



o

Prepared By and Reh¡m To:

Deborah }[. Jehns6¡, P.A,
Broad and &ssel
Barnett B¡nk Center
P.O. Box 4961
Orlando, Flodda 328V24961

Florldâ92789

0ranqe Eo FL t?97{416871tbL?E7 10:31¡50a0
oR Bk se75 Ps Ë64

Rec 15.ù0 DSC-l.ee5.70

Fo¡ Rcco¡di¡e R¡¡posc.r Ooly

SPJIçIAI¿ IVARRA¡{Ï,Y ppEp

THIS INDENTURE, made andexecuted the 9dr.-.. day of June, 1997, by ORI"ANDO-
ORÁDÍGE COIJNTY ÐßRESSWAY ALIIHORITÍ, â public coqrorâr¡on of the State of
Ftorida, whose taxpayer identifïcation numbet is 59-1021557 and whose address is 525 South
Maglolia Avetrue, Orlando, Flotida, X28Ol, hereinafier refened to æ n0rantorrn to E. G.
BAIYKS, whose tax piyer identiflcation number is . and whose address
is 5 Shadow l¡ne, Maitland, Ftorida, 32751, here¡n¿fter called the rGrûnteeo.

WITNESSETH:

TH.A.T the Grsntor, for a¡d ln consüleration of the ¡un of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and
other valuable consiileration, receipt whereof is bereby acknowledged, hereby gmnts, bægalns,
sells, aliens, tenises, feleåses, conveys and confi¡us unto the Grantee, rll that certain land
situatc rn Orange County, Florida, to-wit:

SEE E}üIBIT IIAI' ATTACIIED HERETO AI{D
INCORPORATDD HEREIN TY TIÍIS REIENßNCE.

PÁRCEL TDENTIFICATION NUMBER: NONE

TOGEIIIER with atl thc tenements, heredltaments and appurtenrnces thereto beloqging
or in anywise appertaiaing,

TO HAVE AllD TO HOLD, the same ln fee simple forcver.

AND the

noue other and tlnt ihe
provided, tefercnce thereto shall trot serve

same.

RS\t2842\000rlSuRPLUSu-14 l\DH¡U.tl06.0lA
I

EXHIEIT -

9l0li05- ll:l4am



o
8I.il.TFf'I'tl*%ftfi'

Por Ræordlry Alrpoce Ooly

AND by acccptarce of this deed the Grantee acknowledges and agrees that this
cguvey¿¡¡ce is being made næ-lsn and nwhere-is", wíthout r€presenttttion 0t warranty êxcÆpt as
provided herein.

IN WffNÉSS WHBREOF, the said Grantor has signed and. sealed the præents the day
and year first above written-

Signed, sealed and delivered
ìn the presence of:

ORLAND O-OR.AFTGE COT'NTY
EXPRE$SWAY, a public corToratlon of
the State of Floridr

A. WAlq$ RIcH, Chsirmån

*Tîo*u A, ßouer

Noary Public, ståto of flondg
Commission No bz4Qol
My corynlssion expires: 1läa/aaot

&ü¡

(Pd¡r N¡n¿)

SîATE OF FLORÍDA
COUNTY OF ORANGE

The foregoing lnsftument was acknowledged befote me this {-# Auy of June, 1997,

by A. lrayne Rich, as Chairmân of Orlando-Orange County E4lressway Authoúty, a public

corpoËtion of the State of Floridâ, on behalf of saitl corporation, who ic Bersona[y fnçrofttrQ-

[Se or has ptoduced as identification,

of

ffiaü,ffiffir*
\\.-// !10,0C6391¡01\-./ J¡lP'rqtrrrttnî |tott rt,tl

RÊ\ r 2842\00il\suRpt,us\þl4t ur¡rrl.ltloú.01 A
9f060S - lt: l4un

EXHIBIT

þ



o
J 0R Bk 5e75 Fs Ê6e

0r^ange Ëo FL t997-{gl687l

corded - t{artha 0. HaYnie

For Recûrdhg H¡$qrc. O¡1,

EXUIBrr,rAil

A portion of Ssction 25, Township 22 South, Range 30 Eåst, Otange County, Florida, mors
pardcululy described as follows:

Commence at the North$'est corner of the $outhws$t lá of said Section 25; thence S. 89o58'40"
E. along the North line of said Soufhwcsl Vt lot 50.00 feet; thence S. 00022'48' E. for 45O.82

feet to the Northwesterly Limíted Access Right-of-Way line of the East-West Expressway (SAte

Road No. 408) as shown on ths Right-of-1Vay Map for Project 75008{410-t0t¡ theuse N.
35o09'44n E. along said Limited Access Right-of-S/ay line for 176,67 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNINO, said poínt lying on the East Rightof-Way line of Chicløs¿w Trail æ shoc¡u on
s¿id Right-of-Way Map for ProJect 75008-6410-l0t; thence N. 04"55'29' W, along sâid Bast
Rigtt of-fVay line for 579.98 feet; thence N. 05'16'13' W. ¡long said East Right cf-Way line
for 74.58 feet; thence N.79è21'22u E. for 386.56 feet; thence S. 10038'38" E. fot 254.ûl feet
to said Northwa*erþ Li¡rited Access Right-of-Way line; thencc S. 38"23'36" T/. along srid
Northerly Limlted Access Righþof-Wry line for 596.93 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 4.175 acres, more or less.

R[lt2842\00011SUR¡LUS1t'l¿r\DHlLLII06.01A
9l{HO5.ll:14¡m 3



o

La

o

a

o

I

o

o

O

o

Fírst Americon Títle Insurance Co.

Agent'e File No. 12842'$AOl

Pucel No. 1-141

SCIIEDT'LE A

Datc Issuedr IulY 30, 1997

Date Effecüvcl June 17, 1997 a¡ 10131 a.m'
Amount of Polioy: $175,100.00

Nrme of Insurcd:

E. G. BANKS

The esgæ or interest in the land which is coveted by this policy is;

FEE SIMPIE

Títle to the eshte or iuterest ín thc tand is vested lq:

E. G. B.AI\IKS

The lanrl refened to in ttris pollcy is described as follows:

See Bxhibit r4" attached hereto and íncorporaæd herein by this refetence.

BROAD AND CASSEL

By
Dsborah H. P.A.

Authoriæd Signatory

RSl2842\m0 l\slrRPLU$r-ÉltDHlI.Ll{0l, 29À

Yfût30 - Iofi¿snû

Policy No.: FA-35-120426

o

1

ô

3.

4.

1

a



EXHIBIT

e

I

a

o

o

O

o

First Arnerican Títle Insarønçe Co,

Agent's File No. 12M24001
Pa¡æl No. l-l4l

Policy No.: FA-35-120426

SCTIEDULE B

This policy dæs not lnsure against loss or damago (and the Company v¡ill not pay costs,

rfforneyu' fees or expenses) which arise by reason of:

Genoral Exceptions:

1. Rights or claims of parties ín possession not shown by tlte publie tecords.

2. Easements or clai¡ils of easements, not thowtr by the public records.

g. Ensronchûents, oveilaps, boundary line disputos, ot othsr mettcfs t¡,blch would be

drsclosed by an accuratç survey or hspætion of the premises.

4. Any lien, or right to a tien, for serviccs, lnbot, or matÊrial heretofore or hereaftÊt

firmished, hposed by law and not shown by the public records.

S. Any adverse clain to any portion of said land which has been created by artificial means

or úas accreted to any zuch pgrtign so created and rþ6lan rights, if any.

6. Taxee or s¡ncíal assessments wbich are rct shown as existlng liens by the public tecords.

Note: Items 1, 4, and 6 are hereby deletßd'

Sp€ctat ExcePtions:

7, Nono,

RBlt2S42\000I\SIIRILUS\ t -14 t\DHJLIrto7,29
IlO730- l0:Û2¿r

a

o

a

2

z

o



o

O

o

a

o

o

o

¡

a

a

Fírst Amerücan Títle InsurAnce Co.

Agent's File No. l28/'2-ffi1
Parcel No. 1-141

Policy No. : FA-35-120426

EXfrrn¡1'r'¡'t
LEGAL DT"SCRIPUON

A portion of Sætion 25, Township 22 South, Rango 30 Eåst, Orange County' Florid¿' more

particularly descrÍbcd as follou¡s:

RE\ 12S42\000I\sl,RPLUSlt -14 t\DIlrLtJlüt.29À
y,ü130 " tÛlüzru

Commence at the Northwest corner of the Southwest 
'/¿ 

of said Section 25; thence S. 89o58'40u

E. aloug the North lÍnc of sald Southwest t/+ for 50.00 feeq tlrence S. 00o22'48" E. for 450.82

feet to úe Nortnwesærly Limited Access Right-of-$lay lino of the East-West Expressway (Staæ

Road No. 408) ss shown on the Right-of-\Vay Map fot Project 7500&6410'101; thence N.

35o09'44' E, along said Límited Access Rigüt-of-Way lino for 176'67 fest to the POINT OF

BEGINNING, said point lying on the East Right of-Way line of Chlckasaw Ttail as shown on

said Right-of-Way Map for Project 75008-6410-101; the¡ce N. 04o55'29'W. along said Eåst

n&ht-if-Way tine tor SZ¡.98 feet; thence N, 05o16'13n W. along srid East Right-of$ay llne

for-Z*.Sg fect¡ thence N,79"2L'22n E. for 3S6.56 fæt; thencæ S. 10o38'38" E, for 254.02fe*t

to said Northwesterly timit€d Acc¿es Right'of-v/ay line; thence s'-3ro23'36" w' aloug said

Northerly Lknit€d Acæss Right-of-wty line for 596.93 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

3

o



rtei 3/ZA/2018 Time: 10:02 AM To: FL-042-2016-0023S3 @ 79914078753363 TI
Fund Page: 006

:equest lD'. FL-A42-2016-002393 312812016 '10:02:25 AM

r --- ,-f---
DOC:OR 113 487 1 ol7

*-Õt---*=-*''"-*-* :-

Section 7gôtPrqject.
PEË 1lß nqreil8? sÈqte Road g -(I-S.51

67

bet¡*ee

STÀTE

CUFLU"ER

as E¡êtLy of Èhe second. part';

f{ ¡ T N E S s E f tf¡

,1, . ' ' . i

wlIEFtEAsf rhê ra,.d hereinafte4 desc-rlbed $as--riåret¿-e¿re
acqúired for 6tate highway prripo.**¡ and ì,ì¡ .: ' ì; ;

is'r¡cri

t

L9.q7:i by and

'iô,.

c

:. , ¡r

.. ':'.

EXHIBIT

pvn
, r,, ,l o(

:".tr:,é.LS*,¿.:1¡



EXH¡BIT

6,
fc, 96i:ei

r.te: 3/28/2018 Time; 10;02 AM To;
Fund Page: 007

FL-042-2016-002393 @ 79914078753363 TI

lD. FL-042-20'1 6-002393 312812A1 6 1 0:02:25 AM DOC:OR 113 487 Page 2 of 7

ü''=: -Õ:.::-*=-:,.

$E0EÍ,-N0:¿1.q.¿-rË*qg¿Û
DO:UtOlt fI.I l!O. l. LF;5'r (l¡Est¡l:) ErÁTrolt 3le,:'oö

' (rhâÈ Er:,lE ofz

-ÊEE llß o"^otlffi i
Çp¡r¡¿çncc on tlÌe goulrl¡ bou¡útrjr or thc Nç;.,ï of secttón .lt,
ToÌn¿i¡rJ-p 5 Si(,¿th¡ fapge âS ¡.'flûe, p.-b s polnt eg f,aþt ilest
fro¡¿- tlr:l Soult¡a¡r+t cp¡:ner ti¡e¡¡:of," tqlr ti1ê¡1c0 Sörit¡1 0O: :

l-?"ajrr Í"-.tat- ETe.gL f€cl, to ttrè r'oín; àf f"r¡ir*i"m.ririi.t¡oa*o
Iiortlr Oó"1,?.2.1!'-ve,aI: Aang.lß fcjet to ttre sãuùh Èãinhanr,.;ftlxt cxLstiÞg 66 foot, ¡j,q,Íi1.¿ oî rmy for for:rrty Aoàå lls. 'ãi.

.Fraô"bl-Õ!lâ1 Sestfoâ 10, Tcrnstrlp õ Ecutlrr.sosge e.1.Êiçe..'
dle¡crlbqiå Rs follo.rrs: .' :' .

:.{t$rúÉ"x:*.ir¡; o.jlg ¡srÈi'uorc .p¡ leagi-.t'I.gc .. :t a1 '

'Þrd r{s.'- ä

tlhat ¡ert ofi

3 Tor.untrTp_6 s.ðr.+hl T:* 10..
ãE at¡

ao f,o11o¡¡¡¡
,1

. Eç¡¡t
th+neê Eeutn
,tfëãù 6l¡c fGõü

t,

fcat
F¡'ês ûê¿*

ol

og
i¡t

'=.:+:-{ifr,Ê,e.i¡



rte:
Fund

3/2A/2OL6 Time: 10:02 AM To: FL-042-2016-002393 @ 79314078753363
Page: 008

ID.FL-042-2016-002393 31281201610:02:25 AM DOC: OR 113 487 Page 3 of 7

T¡

?-EE 118 
'¡n¡489lrl\U! RQ'rD ÍOjl 110ßR(I,'J F"L! ¡¡O. ä

Iha'b part of ; | : 
'' .. '

gcg:riôl J, Toirwhip 6 South, Ranse ä Eosi¡ €.esbrltáá; uu
follcri¡E;

SegLn at ttre ¡Sputhr¡egt ce¡ûcr of Borr.o{Í Ptt.lioj,Ê hs iloiaËer}
gbgrve, qn¿l run NoÌË,h oO"LJ.tçg" Esdt 55.73 feeti'tire'ace Southtî"3ç'¡¿9" llee& 3?6,79 fsct to t-tlÉ E;rsÈ rie¡rt oi'vfl,yrl-iãe of
stage Bô3¿t 9 (I-95); rhencê sorìth Ê7oägr5l,'¡:bst 50 fèä¿; r¡:e+ce
ltöFth 6Ao30'O?r' Egat gl)Õ feeù to rnè fài¡¿ cr A"si¡írÉ"s;'
Con{:nl:olrg ô-36 *ere, ¡13re or Le5ej ÂLSq .. j -',_ *

P¡tRcEL l¡o. lLz.l- r* @_:{'l 
'.

BOF.EC¡I.' p:IT t:o. 3 LEsrr' (fiEs,|) $X/C'XIOII r3srglr.6e
T:s¿t part of;

r'1 ,
lrÊLrr.,?rlp þ gouth, Ranse ä3 Eêst, d.dÉü;!bed.;,Ecctiore lJ,

,qe fc]-leus;
. --. - .. I

pqr:ût

EXHIBIT

3

:1.!.5elfr'Æ'r'



rte : 3/?.4/ZOI8 Time: L0 I 02 AM To : FL-042-2O16-002393 @ 7S9140787b3369Fund Page: 009
:equest lD'.FL-042-2016-002393 312812016 '10:02.25 AM DOC:OR 113 487

T]

EXHIBIT

tYv
Q,,

(t

i I-:,

È¡r'i¡o.:Ë ntcm (e+er] s{Aurb¡¡ rÉrr.}räg¡

ù'paÉ of':'
goe df, FecÈien

t.
,t

7

fð

ùcr'Ibeól'üs
4r rrorqshrp
f,ollcuo¡ 1

'1,



rte: 3/24/2OL6 Time: 10:02 AM To: FL-042-2016-002393 @ 79914078?5g363Fund Page: 010
:equest ID FL-A42-2016-002393 31281201610:02:25 AM DOC:OR 113 487 Page 5 of 7

Birirþv
.o,f

Conàalnlng !.fl+ aerce¡ Eo¡e Or f-er*e; Âf,Sg

SALrr fiûAD t'on Bonflçr¡{ pr? t{o. I

![¡¡at p(ìrc 6f :

T]

..¡:'.. Çontaiu^lng o.ltg ac¡¡ei Þrle 0¡,'l€66¡ åEgO

{rt-û,

EXHIBIT

i-r r: -t' I

-3-

't*7¡ãft&'.¿.-i;



Lte: 3/7,8/2016 Time: 10:02 AM To: FL-A4Z-2O16-O02393 @ 799L4078753363Fund Page: 011
:equest ID.FL-O42-2016-002393 31281201610:02:254M DoC:OR 113 487 Page6of 7

Fff llg rásr49?

TI

ËAUt NOåIr FÐll FOIìB,Û/Í FI{f rEû. 9

I'nal; ¡arL o!:
ftre f,{. et l.nlfi SçEth of County Roedl }to, )¡
'Iormehip 5 Sorìth, AltÐge 23 E st, ¡lucL t,he
(¡:XCË:F{ thoù B:r'c ttorth of gewrty'Ror* hþ
and Saogerclcscrlbcd. ås fo]-lorrs:

l-n 6ectJ.o:r L¡
ôf Sactlc'}1 5

), paid. lot¡nshlp
Itr*L
,,

b,u¡
EXHIBIT

5

't
r:r

'EIr

; .-':ttrrtã¡ri

::.:...
', 

t:

.'(:

sl

: :.:,:ir,i,:.É ¿-',.ç'.'l



rte: 3/24/20J"6 Time: 10:02 AM To: FL*O4Z-2O16-002393 e 79Sl-4078753363Fund Page: 012
:equest lD: FL-O42-2016-002393 312812016 10:02:25 AM DOC: OR 113 487 Page 7 of 7

T]

Ttr 1l8PÁff499
' ,. ..::.:' ;: ":.',-:':'coU$ry or¡ rrEos¡ ) . , l',.,1,r,,

BÊI'ORE M8. thc unéersigned arlthority, Lh{s clay. þers'.¿rrarfy
ãpt1eãred JOIIN t1f. CASHIN a¡d t'. K. SfRICKÍrÀ.IttD, ExeçHtíÚe"rlilrþctor
r'nã S-.¡.Êary of. thê gtåte Rûtúrd Ðe¡rÊrer¡errt of .r¡rr¡ridq¡ rpÞpËctivèI.y.
to ms kr¡o!./n tç lrb Èrre pêrÊÕns descri-herl fu.r ¿ntl whe e*ecutdfl'.,ffle
foregoing lnsli$umellt, and tl¡el' severally ack¡rowled.gêd .thell9,fie-
cuel_ón th*¡eof, tO bc thelr f¡'ss aet ar¡d dèecÌ a.s eucl. offisers
fcr.L tr¡e uses ancl purpose^s ttrêrÊl.n mehtionedr âr¡d b,hat ,they.;ì;i.
a.ffixe¡<l Lherego the ófficíal, seal of eaid gtate Road Depâr-Ëirent
of FlqrirTa,
ÞepertmenÈ.

and Èhe caíd ínstrumenÈ !s the aet and 4eep ,gFi.-l.dd

sitt^ä.:[E oF FI,ORID]I ]

5EÀI.}

lrand *lrd officlal. eesl thle
L967 -

IfoUrr

:

'i.'' ¡-:- .

Iir t.¡ f

, ', !.' t.

'';. , ':

€
u
J



:section ?80S0-2d03
Froject " .,,''
stêtË noad I '(I-95),.

ãïf 113 ?Aft494

6? ñ200 DISef,AIMER

KNow AÎ,L ltEN By Ì¡lESË pRË6ËNfd IHAT¡ ....: 
.

. . ": r 1

WHSREAS, the Statc Rosd Deftartment of Florldå t¡as:[ciËJq-

fore acquíreil tit,le to Èhe hereinafter described lands for úr..iôr
: ':,i¡i'

stôt€ highvay purp<,ses¡ and ' '. I ..1.,'.

'" ¡-Jl'j:"
WHEEEA9, Eðiil land ls no longer requíred for said rpllrlosêsr

ancl the Stàte Road Department of Florida h¿¡ no fuEüher uçe.qtièiia
.t"'

lan{l for âny Furpose; ând .. ',::..:

flHERe,AF, the state Soad lapartnene, fy fo¡na1 'u.t¡o¡-lior ,,:.:.:. .....¡

its Boâ?d of September lZ, Lg67 ' åuÈhociu€d the releaie.o¡.,;¡¡¡A
: . ,,t :.','

land¡ '..':,.,,.
. i:.',

¡¡oll, IIuERAFORE, lhg Sl*.'*et ,of ,Flqrlrl¿r Þ:, ô:rd

.agþnc¡" tho State'ñoad DeparÊmenÈ. qf Florid¡i,
.t .

'rtlàn.'of thii. premioes and in pureuancè Ot the

t,27 :'f..s.-,_ doee hcrrby dísslaÍ¡n, rcls+se, r€riouncð

?r$¡io.
.¡J.:'

..t.

t|l - f,,
a

EXHIBIT

(Kt¡

.:.ñr¡-t ¡utt oft¡

Ef¡zrtr¡rl¡ f,tof+T



tþl

ût¡,1 -

EXHIBIT

ContafnûrE 2.35 acros, Eore or lesr; ÂLSo

snE.frzl.r 
:

BoRBoir ¡rr No, 3 Eym{õIo¡i rsru (ursr) STATI0N ]ú3+9\.62

fnat parL ol¡ :

,r1 Ll,gr¡¡¡dg5gectiãn ¡, fU,;oofrfp dålfollor¡c: - 'l'ttl¡, Bange âJ [hsü, delcr.fbed cs

-qectÍon 4, Tor,nchip 6 South, ßonge 23 Eiìst, úÐd SeclrloÀ
33, T;r¡es!¡ip 5 South, Bcnge !g East, described ss folLovs:

.,t

4ì

. .j

,i.:',

\:.



,î tt,l- {b,

EXHIBIT

fåF fl3 páff496 -:,i

thenco South 00"0It14" Eq6t 430.tO fcet for ¿ Poüi'¡ 08., .'í,.
Sccuutil:üi thcEcç cortirrue gouth bocoltÌ8'¡ uest 380 tge!;.,.-í, .

tl¡..rtee llortb 89ot8tlr2" D:rt ltoû fect; theaae llorth I lì.'..
Oo"OLrt8u Uesü 135 feeli t¡lorlco North B9'5ð'42" ¡¡6¿.¿9..,.:i'
feet¡ thepce gor¡t!¡ 0OoOI'I0" !ìest 005 teeu¡ tbence aou{b..;;,
89"t8th2" tlosf )?o feet¡ tb6bae North 00'0t'l8" Hest.l¡oo'.':l;.,
foet; thence tloÉh ô9058'lrâ" E¡ol¡ 10o feet to the PÕ4rt of-j¡"
Beglnnlag; .,,ltir.j
Conta{1lrÉ t.lflI. qcree¡ ¡röre o¡'leçs; AJ,SO ',.l,ii

saD #1.?3"1
"::i

B0RI10'/I 9If N0. I Þ{ffiJt6rôX R}Gi¡xì (¡:¡rsr) sM,¡'fo¡{ 4¿:r¡.¡5.9]il'.,
. ,. 1l:' .

lhat pûrÈ of , , ,

'¡he $tll- ot SectioÂ l, l[ornrhlp ! Souåb, Eange eS Essti
Õcsc¡.lbÊ¿l ês fgl].ors:

Coxcrêac.r oâ tlla gôufir }lrre ô: ..;f, Ssct¡teD l+ aü a pofit

" 
ì::! 

'

¡:



EXHIBIT

ll af l'/f,
( C),4 er)

hereto afflxed

October, 1967.

9IIfNESSES ¡

ETÂTÊ OF FI,ORIDÍI }

corrNfil oP rr6o¡t )

'.jl.

Tll LIBws4W ,,./,/ , '',
¡ sütested by its secrêtary on $rís /l -.a*.,!{.

rnn
STA1TE

EY!

ATfEST

trnÀiltY
irt¡Arl ilEtlI

t

OF TIOBIDA

daÍ
vq

,ls,itf I

(P
f

1., r fJ l1l

Â'

1.'-¡.

.¡

'.ì

t.jrl

' ,:.

. nLEo Âtto HËctihll¿o lti,¡ pijftilc fi€c0flos oF'"
,;' 5T;JûHt{S C0Ullf Y. FLL

llol 13 3 ftfH'$l

I

\.:,:',: ' ......,,' 
-.. ;



rte i 3/ZA/2OL6
Fund

Time: 10r02 AM To: FL-042-2016-002393 @ 73914078753363
Pâge: 003

6

TI

,YiËäfi i:rff sly'Rerurn rc:

t,/ ^ PAPPA9, lrl[TCrr.tF & JENKS, p. A,

f-,4(, 200 v/. r0Fsyilt stR€tr. Strtr[ tl00

v JitËï,:iiä#;:
COI'NTY OF COLUMBI,A

AF['TDAVTT

BDFORE ME penonally oppÈsred Kenneth S. Davis who isgeneral counsel fi¡r Disrict
Trvo of the State of Floridr Department of Trarxportation, an sgency of thc St¡tc of Floridr
("FDOT'), who being first duly sworn, deposes ¡nd seys lhût:

l. I ¿m fhmiliar with FDOT's procedures and pnclícos with rcgud to limited access

on tht intcrstatc highway systcm.

2, I am fìuniliu wÍth thc terms and provisiors of thosc ccrtain rcsçrvstions of ingrcss,
egrçss, light, nir and view as contained in lluf cert¿in Quit Claim Dsd rccoded in Ofüci¡l
Records Book I13, page 487 of lhc public rcçords of Sl. Johns Courtty, Flaridq affccting that
ç,€,rtein propÊßy morc parlicularly dcsoribcd on Ext¡ibít A att¿chcd herclo, ¡nd ¿¡ conlained in thnt
c€,rtn¡n Disslaimer rçca¡ded in OÊficial Records Book I 13, page 494 of ttre public rccods of St.

Johru Corurty, Floridq offæting thrt cnrtain propcrty more particularly rlescribecl on Exhibit B
åttåched hereto, both of which are i¡r favor of FDOT (collectively, the "Reeervations").

3. the purposes of the abovc-refercnced Rescrv¡tions do not, anú ãrs not intcnded to,
trÊalc sny encumbrÊncÊ or sslatç upon rcal prcprty sdjacent to or in proximity to the intcr:rlaæ

highway $ystem, but a¡e intended solely to restri+t the right of diruct accc¡s fro¡n properties
abutring Inte¡state 95 dirætly onto fnterst¿te 95 to tl¡ose locstion$ determined solely by FDOT.

FT,IRTHER, AFFI,ANT SAVEfH NOT.

Ë'

!g
U
l¿
P'
o
á
o
o
0il
o
0

{,r
rt

C,t

o
r
b
o
0
Ê
þrfc
;
Ël

ro
Cl(t
¡Þ
UT
cÀ
ro
tû

o
F

F
l\|
F
ur

E
6¡

øìu
t\J

çtü
.¡
t\¡
E
K

lJ
ñ¡

(,
F

l.¡
0
rg
o\

ct
P
tú

oë
Vl
û
n
o
¡t
rt
a
o
It
Ìr]

oo

The forcgoing insrumcnt was acknowledged before ms thís ffìrrv "rúIU.üþ.,ù199ó, by Kenneth S. Da'ris.

NOTARY c
ùtlutç ut ¡:lt

LOmm¡sston
i,lw l.nmmlccinn.'¡J vr'rr¡Ù.¡{r.v¡.

Per<nnnllv

or Produced I

[check onc ofthe nbovef
'fyps of ltlcntification Produced

frl-ß7çt?'t'/l
( Qn-u

EXHIBIT

fZ.



rte: 3/zB/20L6
Fund

t

Time¡ 10:02 AM To; FL-042*2016-002393 @ 79914078753363
Page: 004

6 10:02:25 AM

T1

O,R, I¿I5 Pû CI623 
:

*.-,¡^-;.';; .;;.;.;!,;,:-..'...;..:....'1...'. J. ¡. ,t!' .1'i ._. .' '

a

DoBRtt FIr ï0. e RI0Br (Ef,Sn) marrol gs¡33"99

!&¡t ¡trrt dt .

3ærüfur t, lr.nrlrt¡ 6 Ooutt, ßangc âg Eoaü, il¡scrtl¡cûr¡ toll.onr3

*f ilS PÁs489
DOnn0J Pll ll0. e

9q¡nar m thÊ goutb lt¡o of, ttlô Sccglon 3, of ß ¡nlnt?W"3, fca! figct of tùç üorùbeagt cornçr tñärcog, ãna n¡n

fü-gg-t. ïS'ffi '*iii¿"ffi$,fri,Íi' æ' çsî' i*nè

äffit'æg*tf ffi'îif,J:f t,,'i"lñt',I.Ë..
ffi¡Ë¡ ffieffi.gï$.ii'.$#i"r*. Forrh

Attf,hl.q !.b acrct, -ro o, har¡ tl,tKt

t

t
;

I
x,lUL noÍD Fon

n$t Þrt o1¡

Éectlolr 3, 
'lorrnc¡tp 6 8outh, Hange 2t Eaot, lleaeribed ao

foLlousr ., .

Begtn rt tjre Southvest corncr of Eorroç ?lt lls, Ê qc loc¿teil
lUõuc. onû ¡un l{orth O0olilf0g" E*dt 55.j3 feet; thance $outh
6ã'Soitlg" lteet 3?6.J9 feet to tbe that rl6lrt of 11¡¡ llne qf
aäir Sãe 

= 
{r"g:}!-å-}+nee E':ut'h i!"*tlt.n 1l+t", Ët tee'-t r'ho'¡er:

it-.+!, r<âr"ôtñ¿i¡¡ iúit ¡an f¡¿t ta thê ltial-trf, o-¡ ¡¡plgD-{-f4?¡rçó.¡F ri ¿Þ Vjt :a_* r¡-;*r' å='YÈ .-'r È¡¡ t' . ¡F{::ti- -r_ _ _9-i-¡r¡e'

' ^ 
+2 - -.,- t ^ãâ. l?ar^gOEEtrf.DIIIg UrJu üËr'c¡ &¡u¿s ut ¿r,eet tlÀaw



rte: 3/28/2OL6
Fund

-201

t

Time: L0
Page:

o2
005

AM To: FL-043-2016-002393 @ 799140Z8Z58868

oR1

TI

a

Ill^GINC f\fD|UO
[fi$ lvRrrtNc¡TYP¡NC e PRINIINC

w^s uNsÂ't'lsr;^cr()¡$' lioR.
, REPTìODUCTIONATTTT!TT¡dB
F fìF rf,,rar-\rNn't'

0.a, luls Pß g5z1

a

o

iËiil," 
ro"mnrr,s iåi"'*¡f;#ågg,r, 

deierlb.o ..
9ffiH",:l.T:"rålo.il:fff,J:t,":i::l"i,l"i:,: lïi"ilHft',il fl;i,lJ;ri HHj* :i:ll,' **.u r¡ortn- 6a;io, og,,

;r:g*saruïüplr*r*lffi
ii'í'åå¡.ffi ls"-*::::::::::::lit3;gU"'d"zuicct¡-{¡çlioroot tJtið fir'i'ü;ü;frti:;Èi tüencc north 6?'p,tlt',

Cq¡tat¡fu¡c ê,3! rcrc¡r Etr1Ê or lêrri ÁfSO

I

.,..,... ..:, .. iri.,,- t,..,..i,

,: :. i.,..,i .....,...... .r,:r ,. . .r

EXHIBIT

¡rf "f 
¡lvl -ft,

ri;'.'.::i | .4. . .'ii. ,."i'.'i
'i .',,., ;; t,, .'.1"r . r'J ",; i.



TabH





























Central Florida 
Expressway Authority 

Right of Way Legal Counsel Procurement 
and Invoice Audit 

February 18, 2016 

© 2016 Protiviti Inc. All Rights Reserved This document has been prepared for use by CFX's management, audit committee, and board of 
directors This report provides information about the condition of risks and internal controls at one point in time Future events and changes may 
significantly and adversely impact these risks and controls in ways that this report did not and cannot anticipate pr,21!xit 

1nterri:li .At.:Cit 



Table of Contents 

2 

Executive Summary 

Detailed Observations 

Appendix A - Right of Way Legal Counsel Benchmarking 

Appendix B - Benchmarking of Evaluation Criteria - ROW Legal Counsel 

Appendix C - Right of Way Acquisition Cost by Fiscal Year 

Appendix D - Key Controls Identified 

© 2016 Protiv11i Inc All R1gnts Reserveo This document has been prepared for use by CFX s management. audit committee. and board of directors This report 
proviaes information about the condition of risks and internal controls at one point on nme Future events and changes may significantly and adversely impact 
these risks and controls on ways that this report did not and cannot anticipate 

3-10 

11-14 

15-17 

18 

19 

20-21 

protiviti 



Executive Summary 

3 

Background 

During fiscal year 2012, Internal Audit performed an audit of the Central Florida Expressway Authority's Right of Way policies and procedures surrounding the 
procurement of parcels and the use of eminent domain. The 2012 audit included testing of land acquisitions taken from a population of 123 acquisitions for the 
John Land Apopka Expressway project, dating back to 2004, the last major road construction project undertaken by the Authority through the time of the last 
audit. 

For the current Right of Way audit as outlined in the 2016 Internal Audit plan, Internal Audit reviewed the Authority's procurement of and use of legal counsel in 
Right of Way land acquisitions dating back to 2014 for the Wekiva Parkway, All Aboard Florida project, and Kelly Park Interchange project. More specifically, 
during this audit, Internal Audit reviewed the processes in place to procure Right of Way legal counsel, including the use of in-house and out-sourced legal 
counsel, and the processes in place for the review and evaluation of legal invoices and right of way costs. 

As of February 2016, the Authority is currently using a blend of in-house legal counsel and outsourced legal counsel to manage the procurement of parcels of 
land. Also at this time, the Authority's Board is considering the need to hire additional in-house counsel, with at least part of the assigned responsibilities being 
to work on additional Right of Way acquisition. Within the next 12 months, the Authority expects to acquire an additional 100 parcels of land to support projects 
on State Roads 429 and 528. 

Below is a summary of the allocation of work assigned to each Right of Way counsel for the projects in-scope as of the time of this audit. 

• Winderweedle, Haines, Ward & Woodman, P.A. - 45 parcels for the Wekiva Parkway project (29 in litigation) 
• Shutts & Bowen, LLP - 89 parcels for the Wekiva Parkway project (67 parcels in litigation) 

Lowndes, Drosdick, Doster, Kantor & Reed, P.A. - 4 parcels at the Kelly Park Interchange (all in litigation) 
Mateer Harbert, P.A. - 3 parcels on SR 528 (purchase agreements executed for all) 
In-house Deputy General Counsel - 10 parcels post Order of Taking (OT), which represents the formal filing of an eminent domain action by the 
Authority) 

Objectives 

The specific objectives of this audit were to: 

(1) Perform a risk assessment of the Right of Way legal procurement and legal invoice review processes; 
(2) Review the Authority's policies and procedures surrounding the procurement and invoice review processes; 
(3) Identify the mixture of in-house versus outsourced legal counsel and obtain benchmark data around the use of outsourced legal counsel and the 

procurement process compared to local and industry practices; 
(4) Conduct a trend analysis of appraised cost values versus the settlement cost of recent land purchases; and 
(5) Conduct a trend analysis of land acquisition cost and the stage of settlement. 

© 2016 Protiv1t1 Inc All Rights Reserved This document has been prepared for use by CFX s management, audit committee . and board of directors This report 
provides information about the condition of nsks and internal controls at one poim in time Future events and cnanges may significantly and adversely impact 
1hese risks and controls 1n ways that this report did not and cannot anticipate 

Continued on the following page ... 

protivit i 



Executive Summary 

4 

Project Scope and Approach 

The audit was performed using a phased audit approach as outlined below: 

Phase I - Risk Assessment and Process and Controls Review 

Internal Audit performed a risk assessment to identify risks over the right of way legal counsel procurement and invoice review process. This included 
gathering information from the Authority's management and staff of the finance, procurement, and legal departments, as well as reviews of Board and 
Committee discussions. 

Internal Audit subsequently reviewed the key processes and controls used to mitigate risks related to procuring external right of way legal counsel and 
approving invoices for payment. Key controls within each of these areas were identified and evaluated for design effectiveness. Details regarding the 
processes reviewed, controls walked through and observations are provided in the Summary of Audit Procedures. 

Phase II - Benchmarking the Authority's Right of Way Legal Counsel Procurement to Local Government and Industry Practices 

Internal Audit performed procedures to gather data to benchmark the following Right of Way (ROW) processes to local and industry practices: 

A. Mixture of in-house and outsourced legal counsel. 
B. Request for Proposal (RFP) process and evaluation criteria for legal counsel. 

To gather the information necessary to perform the benchmarking, Internal Audit interviewed staff members of the following counties and 
municipalities: Orange County, City of Orlando, Seminole County, Osceola County, and Lake County. In addition, Internal Audit interviewed staff of the 
following other tolling and transportation authorities: North Texas Tolling Authority, Harris County Tolling Authority, Hillsborough Expressway Authority, 
Miami Dade Expressway Authority, Florida Turnpike Enterprise, and North Carolina Turnpike Authority. 

Phase Ill - Data Analytics 

Internal Audit performed limited data analytics to review right of way parcel acquisition settlement costs versus the appraised cost values (as obtained 
from Authority appraisals and owner appraisals), average legal and expert costs (based on fees paid) to acquire parcels, and the stage at which parcel 
acquisitions were settled. Data was obtained from Right of Way Committee minutes, Excel tracking files from outside legal counsel and Atkins (General 
Engineering Consultant), and the monthly TIFIA reports 

:si 2016 Prot1v1t1 Inc All Rights Reserved This document has been prepared for use by C~X s management, audit committee, and board of directors This report 
provides 1nformat1on about the condition of risks and internal controls at one point in time Future events and changes may significantly and adversely impact 
these risks and controls 1n ways that this report did not and cannot anticipate 

Continued on the following page ... 

protivit i 



Executive Summary 
Results: Phase I - Processes and Controls Review 

Legal Invoice 
Review 

Monitoring of 
Parcel Acquisition 

Procurement 

Invoice Processing: review of billing rates, including expert fees and expenses, 
duplicate payments, and hours billed. 

General Counsel, Deputy General Counsel, and ROW Committee activities to monitor 
direction, strategy, and performance. 

Project bidding (sealed bids and competitive sealed proposals) and bid awards: 
Authorization to bid, contracts reviewed by CFX's attorney's office, RFP documented 
and opened to the public, evaluation committee reviews bids, fee evaluation 
performed by Procurement Department and Evaluation Committee. 

TOTAL: 

*A listing of key controls identified in the CFX Right of Way process is included in Appendix D. 

Key Controls 
Identified• 

3 

6 

11 

20 

5 (0 2016 Prot1v1t1 Inc All R1gnts Reserved This document nas been prepared for use by CFX s management audit committee. and board of directors This report 
provides information about the cond1t on of risks and internal controls at one point 1n time Future events and changes may significantly and adversely impact 
these nsKs and controls in ways that this report d10 not and cannot anticipate 

Number of 
Observations 

1 

1 

0 

2 

Observation 
Reference 

2 

1 

N/A 

Continued on the following page ... 

protivit i 



Executive Summary 
Results: Phase II - Benchmarking 

Mix of In-House vs Outsourced Counsel 
• Counties and cities represented in the Authority's Board 

A 
• Other tolling and transportation authorities 

--~ I 

6 

Request for Proposal (RFP) Process and 
Evaluation Criteria _l: Counties and cities represented in the Authority's Board 

Other tolling and transportation authorities 
B 

A - Refer to Appendix A for additional information on size of legal department, counsel used for ROW, and other qualitative factors that make 
comparing CFX legal counsel to other entities a complex process. 

For the projects in-scope as of the time of this audit, approximately 93% of parcels identified by the Authority for acquisition have been assigned to 
outside legal counsel. The following three factors drive the Authority's decision around using in-house versus out-sourced legal counsel for right of 
way land acquisition: 

(1) Size of agency's legal staff, 
(2) Size and scope of right of way acquisitions performed, and 
(3) Level of complexity involved in the acquisition process (negotiated sale vs. eminent domain action). 

The Authority will continue to need outside counsel to assist with complex acquisitions and to provide a more variable cost model to manage 
current spikes in right of way acquisition. However, based on a cost analysis prepared by the Authority's staff and presented to the Authority's 
Board during October 2015, there is opportunity to reduce costs for legal services through the hiring of an additional in-house resource. However, 
consideration should be given to use of an additional in-house resource if volume of right of way acquisition declines. 

B - Refer to Appendix B for additional information on how the Authority's right of way counsel RFP evaluation metrics compare with the metric 
ranges provided by Orange County, City of Orlando, Seminole County, Osceola County and Lake County and the other similar tolling and 
transportation authorities that provided input. 

I 

1 

\;; 2016 Prot1v1t1 nc A I R1gms Reserved Tn1s documenr nas been preparea tor use by O'X s management, audit comm ttee and board ot directors This report 
prov1aes information aoout che cor.d1uon of nsKs and internal controls at one point 1n nrne Future evems and changes may s1gniflcant1y and adversely impact 
inese risks ana controls 1n ways that this report did not ano cannot anloc1pati: 

prot ivit i 



Executive Summary 
Results: Phase Ill - Data Analvtics 

Land & Owner Settlement Costs by Settlement Stage 

Dating from the start of the Wekiva Parkway Project, a total of 28 parcel acquisitions were sampled by Internal Audit and analyzed for a total "all-in" cost of $9,977,504 
(inclusive of purchase price of parcels and owner legal and expert costs paid by the Authority, exclusive of CFX legal and expert fees) per unaudited data in the monthly 
TIFIA reports. Data regarding the stage at which parcel acquisitions were settled was obtained from the Right of Way Committee minutes dated May 13, 2014 through 
October 28, 2015. This data is unaudited and was used to classify parcels and the related land and owner legal costs for analytical purposes only. 

Based on data depicted below, the following key points were observed: 

• The majority, or 66%, of parcels were acquired post OT through negotiated or mediated settlement, representing 72% of the dollars spent. 

7 

Parcels settled through trial represented 7% of parcels acquired and 28% of dollars spent, demonstrating a higher cost of trials. 
• As reflected by the data in the chart on page 8, on average, the highest legal and expert fees are incurred if a parcel goes to trial. 

Settlement Stage by Value 

.. · 
Purchase Agreement 

(prior ro petit ion), 
$650,740, 6% 

Settlement Stage by Number of Parcels 

Purchase 
Agreement 

(prlorto 
petition), 6, 21% 

© 2016 Prot1vit1 Inc All Rights Reserved This document nas been prepared for use by CFX s management. audit committee. ana board cf directors This report 
provides 1nformat1on about the cond1t1on of nsks and internal controls at one point in time Future events and changes may significantly and adversely impact 
these nsks and controls m ways that this repon did not and cannot anticipate 

protivit i 



Executive Summary 

8 

Average CFX Legal and Expert Fees by Settlement Stage* 

$400,000 

$350,000 

$300,000 

$250,000 

$200,000 

$150,000 

$100,000 

$50,000 

$0 
Purchase Agreement Negotiated I Mediated 

Settlement 
Trial 

*Based on unaudited data taken from monthly TIFIA reports for the 28 parcels selected for the audit; does not 
include owner legal costs and expert fees. 

© 2016 Protiviti Inc All Rights Reserved Thrs document has been prepared for use by CFX s management, audit committee, and board of directors This report 
provides information about the condition of risks and internal controls at one point in time Future events and changes may srgnificanUy and adversely impact 
these risks and controls in ways that this report did not and cannot anticipate 

protivit i 



Executive Summary 
Results - Data Analvtics !continued) 

Land Settlement Costs versus Appralsals 

The following unaudited data was obtained from the monthly TIFIA reports. Comparing the final land settlement cost to the Authority's appraisal and the owner's 
appraisal, as available and reportable, the data for several parcels acquired revealed large differences between appraised values and settlements. This chart does 
not include confidential information obtained orally during mediations, such as owner demands that could not be shared or reported. In three of the four cases 
depicted below where owner's appraisals were in excess of 200% over the Authority's appraised value, the Authority's final settlement costs were closer to the 
Authority's appraisals than the owner's appraisal. The fourth case depicted below (209/221) was a trial verdict. 

9 

650% 

600% 

550% 

500% 

450% 

400% 

350% 

300% 

250% 

200% 

150% 

100% 

50% 

0% 
\>. ~...,. c::i"' ~"\ ~c:J 'll fo~ ~~ ~c.; ...,.~ ...,.c::i 

~ 

.,,c::i°" ..,ooi .,_o ...,. ,,,...,. 
.... 

Land Settlement As Percentage of Land Appraisal 

..,,,,,,, .::l ,,.,ro .,. ~"' ,..,.<}>' 

Parcel Number 

<.:>'° ...,. ._,'I. ... "\<o ...,. v°" ...,.~ 

a Settlement Amount • CFX Appraisal Owner Appraisal a Average of Appraisals 

Outliers {i.e., Settlement amount exceeded 250% of the CFX appraisal or average appraisal if applicable} in the analysis were as follows: 

... 'b'b ~...,. ,,,<:::i"' ...,.ro ,,, Pl ...,. ,,,-. :\\',,, 
,,,<fl 

Parcel 110 was a purchase agreement prior to eminent domain action. Based on the Right of Way Committee minutes related to this parcel, severance damages 
were explained to the Committee to rationalize the settlement amount. Reported land settlement cost above may account for other compensation to the owner 
that was not specifically negotiated and could not be reported separately. 
Parcel 138 had a spread of $66,000 between the land appraisal of $33,000 and the land settlement of $96,000. 
Parcels 209 and 221 were tried and purchase price was determined by jury verdict. 

© 2016 Protiviti Inc All Rights Reserved This document has been prepared For use by CFX s management, audit committee and board of directors This report 
provides information about the condition of risks and internal controls at one point in time Future events and changes may significantly and adversely impact 
these risks and controls in ways that this report did not and cannot anticipate 

protiviti·· 



Executive Summary 
Results - Data Analvtics (continued) 

Owner and CFX Legal, Expert, and Other Fees Per Parcel 

$700,000 

$600,000 

$500,000 

$400,000 

$300,000 

$200,000 

~-·····~·····r··········-~·-·· -~ -· ··r··l···-~ ··· ·I···· ·1······=·····l ······ .. ·····1·····-~·-····:·· .. ·l ··l·· .. 1 · ····l·--· ~---····1···· $100,000 

$0 

10 

... .... "' " 
.., 

"' 0 ..... N ... .., Ll'I ... "' .... "' 
.., 

"' 0 0 0 0 0 0 ..... m m m m ... Ll'I Ll'I Ll'I .... .... .., .., .., .., .., ..... ..... ... ..... ..... .... ..... ..... ..... .... .... .... .... .... ........ ........ ........ u "' " ... 0 0 
0 .... ..... .... 

Parcel Number 

For the in-scope sample, the average legal and expert fees paid per parcel was $104,168 as obtained from the monthly TIFIA reports. 
Outliers in the analysis were as follows: 

Parcel 110 was a negotiated agreement prior to petition (eminent domain action). 
Parcel 131 included two tenant claims. 
Parcel 134 included relocation payments. 

.., .... m "' .., 0 0 ..... .... N N N 

Parcel 154 included a business damage claim for two businesses on the property, relocation benefits, and the taking of three manufactured homes. 
Parcel 186 involved a mediated settlement agreement. 

CTI .... 
N N 
N N 

°' 0 
N 

Parcel 188 involved taking a residence with 10 acres. Multiple depositions were conducted and it was set for trial when settled. Additionally, there were multiple 
relocation issues related to this parcel which increased total fees. 
Parcel 203 involved a business damage claim and involved the taking of a residence. 
Parcels 209 and 221 were tried. Owner legal, expert, and other fees are not included in the amount above as they have not been paid by the Authority and are not yet 
included on the monthly TIFIA reports. Once paid, amount depicted above will increase. 

Parcel 156 attorney's fees/costs were billed to Project 202 General Matter. Because the attorney fee's/costs were blended into Project 202 General Matter for multiple parcels, 
the costs related to Parcel 156 were not included in the chart above. 

© 2016 Prot1v1ti Inc All Rights Reserved This document has been prepared for use by CFX s management. audit committee. and board of directors This report 
provides 1nformat1on about the condition of nsks and internal controls at one point in time Future events and changes may significantly and adversely impact 
these 11sks a110 controls in ways mat this report did not and cannot anticipate 

protivit i 



Detailed Observations- Processes and Controls 

· Legal Invoice Review 

~ 

Monitoring of Parcel 
1 Acquisition 

Procurement 

~ 

Observation 1 - Right of Way Recordkeeping 
Relative Priority: \,. ~ rm 

Based on Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan requirements, the Authority submits a monthly 
report of project costs to the Federal government and will be required to report final costs for the project in order to obtain the 
TIFIA loan funding. During the audit, we reviewed various sources of Right of Way data, including the Right of Way Committee 
minutes, Excel tracking files from outside legal counsel, and the monthly TIFIA reports, and identified multiple instances of 
inaccurate or inconsistent data between sources. Specifically, the TIFIA reports contained formula errors, data that was 
incorrectly rolled forward from month-to-month, in addition to classification issues for closed parcels that were listed as open. 
Of most concern were inaccuracies identified in the TIFIA reports that are designed to track project costs for later funding from 
the Federal government. There are multiple parties involved in creating and reviewing the TIFIA reports, including Legal Counsel 
and Finance personnel, which all input or review parts of the report. It is critical that the data in the TIFIA reports be kept 
complete and accurate for monitoring and reporting purposes. There is an opportunity to improve the quality and reliability of 
the data gathered for presentation in the TIFIA reports. 

Recommendation 
The Authority should formalize its quality assurance/quality control process by assigning a process owner(s) responsible for 
compiling TIFIA data, reconciling TIFIA data to source documents, and verifying the completeness and accuracy of the 
information included in the monthly TIFIA reports. Additionally, there is an opportunity to centralize Right of Way activity into 
one spreadsheet or database in order to minimize (or eliminate) the maintenance and monitoring of multiple sources of 
information. 

Management Response 
Management concurs. 

Continued on the following page ... . 

11 © 2016 Protiv1t1 Inc All Rights Reserved This document has been prepared for use by CFX s management. audit committee, ana board of directors This report 
provides 1nformat1on about the cond1t1on of risks and internal controls at one point in time Future events and changes may significantly and adversely impact 
mese risks and controls 1n ways that this report did not and cannot anticipate 

protivit i 



Detailed Observations - Processes and Controls 

Legal Invoice Review 

' 

Monitoring of Parcel 
Acquisition 

Procurement 

~ 

m 

Management Action Plan 
Initially, each Right of Way outside counsel or responsible party within the Authority will confirm the amount paid in the 
cumulative payments columns of the monthly TIFIA reports to ensure accuracy of the current spreadsheet. If there is a 
discrepancy identified, the responsible party will research and correct the discrepancy in the TIFIA reports. Going forward, each 
firm or responsible party will prepare a separate monthly TIFIA report summarizing the activity in the parcels assigned to that 
firm. The Accounting Department will audit the spreadsheets for accuracy using source documentation, which will be made 
available to the party responsible for performing the review of the spreadsheets. 

Action Plan owner/Due Date 
Linda Lanosa, Deputy General Counsel I August 2016 
Aneth Williams, Manager of Contract Compliance I August 2016 

12 © 2016 Protivit1 Inc All Rights Reserved This document has been prepared for use by CFX s management, audit committee, and board of directors~ This report 
provides information about the condition of risks and internal controls at one point in time Future events and changes may significantly and adversely impact 
these nsks and controls in ways tha1 this report did not and cannot anticipate 

protivit i 



Detailed Observations - Processes and Controls 

. 

~ 

Legal Invoice Review 

Monitoring of Parcel 
Acquisition 

Observation 2 - Review of Legal Invoices 
Relative Priorify: Low 

The Authority's General Counsel reviews invoices for fees billed by external Right of Way legal counsel for accuracy and 
compliance with contractual terms. Per the terms of the contracts, external legal counsel will not be reimbursed for expenses 
such as telecopy, local telephone, data processing, courier or other services that would be deemed to be part of the firm's 
overhead expenses. However, the firm will notify General Counsel of any large copy and print jobs in order for a determination 
to be made as to how the copying will be handled and expensed. 

Internal Audit testing identified that one external Right of Way counsel billed the Authority for $1,440 in copy and printing 
charges without prior authorization by General Counsel. General Counsel reviewed and approved the invoices for payment; 
however, there was no evidence that the charges were approved prior to being invoiced. 

In addition, supporting documentation is required to be provided by external legal counsel for direct costs incurred, such as court 
reporters and deposition transcripts. Internal Audit testing identified that one external Right of Way counsel billed the Authority 
for $1,135 in court reporters and courier costs. However, invoice support was not provided for these costs and the legal invoice 
was approved for payment. 

Recommendation 

Procurement 

~ 

The Legal Department should review the invoices for appropriateness and to (1) ensure that direct costs billed conform to 
authorized costs detailed in the contract, (2) supporting documentation Is provided for direct costs, and (3) each expert invoice is 
reviewed and approved by external legal counsel. The Finance Department personnel should conduct a secondary review of 
invoices for supporting documentation and attorney approval while reviewing invoices for rates and personnel assigned. 

13 © 2016 Prot1v1t1 Inc All Rights Reserved This oocumer.t has oeen prepared for use by C~X s management, audit committee, and board of directors This report 
provides information about the cond111011 of risks and internal controls at one point 1n t me Future events and changes may sign ficantly and adve1sely impact 
triese nsks and controls •n ways that tn1s repon did not and cannot ant1c1pate 

Continued on the following page .... 

protivit i 



Detailed Observations - Processes and Controls 

.. 

~ 

Legal Invoice Review 

Monitoring of Parcel 
Acquisition 

Obse.rvation 2 - Review of Lega.1 Invokes (cont.) 

Management Response 
Management concurs . 

Management Action Plan 
Legal Department will perform a review of invoices to (1) ensure that direct costs billed conform to authorized costs detailed in 
the contract and (2} supporting documentation is provided for direct costs. 

In addition, the Finance Department will perform a secondary review of the invoices to include the direct costs, supporting 
documentation, and approval of the expert invoices. 

Action Plan Owner/Due Date 
Joe Passiatore, General Counsel I August 2016 
Aneth Williams, Manager of Contract Compliance I August 2016 

Procurement 

~ 

14 © 2016 Prot1viti Inc Ali Rights Reserved This document has been prepared for use by CFX s management, audit committee and board of directors This report 
provides 1nforma11on about the condition of risks and internal controls at one point in time Future events and changes may significantly and adversely impact 
these risks and controls in ways that this report did nor and cannot anticipate 

protivit i 



Appendix A - Right of Way Legal Counsel Benchmarking 

15 

CFX as compared to the counties and cities represented on the Board: 

The following benchmarking charts are based on Internal Audit's discussion with members of various tolling authorities, cities and counties. The 
first chart is a comparison of CFX to other tolling and transportation authorities. The entities selected are a mixture of in-state and out-of-state 
authorities. The second chart is a comparison of CFX to local (i.e., in-state) cities and counties. 

The information presented in the following charts is a broad comparison and is not intended to serve as a scorecard and should not be used to infer 
conclusions about an entity's legal department. There are numerous qualitative factors that make benchmarking CFX legal counsel to other entities 
complex. For instance, no two eminent domain cases are alike. Factors that may influence the amount of time and effort required for an eminent 
domain case, include but are not limited to: the type of taking (whole or partial), the type of property and its current/future use, and the number 
of owners and ownership interests (e.g., businesses, tenants, etc.). Additionally, another factor is the amount of time available before the 
acquisition deadline and whether it is possible to negotiate a voluntary purchase with the owner(s). Furthermore, the entity may be required to 
pay the owner(s) severance damages, relocation fees, and business damages. 

Moreover, comparing the size of a legal department across different types of governmental entities is complex. Some entities primarily use in
house legal assistance, some entities use a mixture of in-house and outside counsel, and some primarily use outside counsel. Full-time equivalent 
(FTE) information, which would be a better representation of time spent by a legal department on eminent domain cases, was not available across 
entities. As such, the size of the legal department in the following benchmarking charts is presented in total and does not take into account the 
different types of legal matters that each entity's legal department may encounter (e.g., land use, general administrative issues, ordinances, 
building and zoning, corrections, etc.). 

CFX has increased the use of eminent domain cases due to significant growth in Central Florida, the need for additional roadways, and specific 
deadlines mandated by the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan that was used to help finance the roadway 
expansion. In comparison, CFX has increased usage of eminent domain cases whereas other governmental entities may not have experienced the 
same need for land acquisition through eminent domain. 

'.;' 2016 Prot1v1t1 Inc All Rights Reserved This document has been prepared for use by CFX s management, audit committee. and board of directors This repon 
provides 111iormation about the condition of risks and internal controls at one point 1n 11me Future events and changes may s1gni~cantly and adversely impact 
these risks ana controls 1n ways that this report dio not and cannot ant1c1pate 

protivit i 



Appendix A - Right of Way Legal Counsel Benchmarking (cont.) 

CFX as compared to other tolling and transportation authorities in the United States: 
The North Texas Tolling Authority and Harris County (Texas) Tolling Authority were selected based on the size similarity to CFX. Additionally, the 
Florida Turnpike Enterprise, Tampa Hillsborough Expressway and Miami Dade Expressway were selected because they are local (i.e., in-state) 
entities. The North Carolina Turnpike was selected as an additional comparison point although structure differs from CFX. North Carolina Turnpike 
is part of the North Carolina Department ofTransportation (NCDOT), which is responsible for building, repairing and operating all roadways in 
North Carolina. 

CFX 

Size of Legal 
2 

Department 

Counsel Used 
Primarily 

Outsourced 

Extensive 
eminent domain 
litigation mainly 
through the use 

Qualitative 
I 

of outside 

Factors 
counsel. TIFIA 

loan 
requirements 
require strict 
timelines for 
acquisition. 

North 
Carolina 

Turnpike* 

31 

In-House 

The North 
Carolina 

Turnpike is 
part of the 
NCDOTand 
conducts 

extensive ROW 
acquisition. 

Nineteen {19) 
attorneys 

assigned to 
ROW division. 

North Texas 
Tolling 

Authority 

2 

Outsourced 

No ROW 
acquisition 
currently. 

Harris County 
(Texas) Tolling 

Authority 

2 

In-House (unless 
litigation required) 

Irregular ROW 
acquisition. 
Covered by 

County's legal 
department. 

Additionally, Harris 
County has a 

separate Right of 
Way department 
with 15 full-time 
staff members. 

Florida 
Turnpike 

Enterprise 

1 

In-House 

Extensive ROW 
acquisition. 

Agency is part 
of Florida 

Department of 
Transportation 

and utilizes 
their legal 

resources in 
addition to one 

resource on-
staff. 

Tampa 
Hillsborough 
Expressway 

1 

In-House (unless 
litigation 
required) 

Very few ROW 
parcels acquired 

and most 
acquired 
through 

negotiated 
settlement. 

Miami 
Dade 

Expressway · .... 

2 

Outsourced 

Beginning a 
large project, 
but irregular 

ROW 
acquisition in 

the past. 
Agency policy 
encouraging 
negotiated 
purchase. 

The above data is based on unaudited information provided to Internal Audit by the agencies. Comparable agencies were judgmentally selected by 
Internal Audit during the planning phase of the audit. 

16 © 2016 Prot1v1t1 Inc All Rights Reserved This document has been prepared for use by CrX s management audit committee, and t>oard of directors This report 
provides information abour rhe condition of risks and internal controls at one prnnt in time Future events and changes may significantly and adversely •mpaci 
these nsks and controls in ways thar this report d1a not and cannot ant1cipa 

protivit i 



Appendix A - Right of Way Legal Counsel Benchmarking (cont.) 

17 

CFX as compared to the counties and cities represented on the Board: 

In general, the Authority's decision to primarily outsource appears in line with the other county (Osceola) that is most similar to it in terms of size 
of legal department and spend. Lake County keeps ROW in house and has a legal department that is similar in size, but spend is significantly less 
than the Authority's and the complexity of acquisitions is less, as approximately 88% of parcels acquired through negotiated sale prior to eminent 
domain. The City and the counties with larger in-house staff tend to keep ROW acquisition in-house. 

Size of Legal 
2 4 

Department 

Counsel Used Primarily 
Outsourced 

for ROW Outsourced 

Extensive eminent 
domain litigation 

mainly through the 

Qualitative 
use of outside Very irregular and 

Factors 
I counsel. TIFIA loan infrequent 

requirements eminent domain. 
require strict 
timelines for 
acquisition. 

30 

In-House (unless 
litigation required) 

Regular ROW 
acquisition, but filing 

eminent domain action 
is irregular. One of the 

attorneys in the City 
Attorney's Office has 
substantial eminent 
domain experience. 

Additionally, the City's 
legal department 

handles a variety of 
legal matters including 

police cases. 

13 

In-House (unless 
litigation required) 

Infrequent ROW 
acquisition. 

The above data is based on unaudited information provided to Internal Audit by the entities identified. 

3 

In-House 

Approximately 20 
parcels purchased 

annually. 
Approximately 3 
parcels involved 
eminent domain 
action with no 

trials. 

© 2016 Prot1vrti Inc All Rights Reserved Th s aocument has been prepared for use by CFX s management audrt committee and board of directors This report 
provides onformatoon about the cond1t1on of risks and internal controls at one point in time Future events and changes may significantly ana adve1sely impact 
;hese risks and controls on ways that this report doo not and cannot ant1c1pate 

16 

In-House 

Few parcels 
acquired. 

protivit i 



Appendix B - Benchmarking of Evaluation Criteria - ROW Legal Counsel 

18 

Eminent Domain/Trial Experience 25 20-45 

local Staff Qualifications 30 20-40 

Mitigation Approach 25 20-25 

Cost Proposal 15 20-25 

Minority/Women Business Enterprise Participation - 10- 20 

*The Authority's Scoring Metric was last used during the 2015 Right of Way RFP process. 

© 2016 Prottv1t1 Inc All Rights Reserved This document has been prepared for use by CFX s management. audit committee ana board of directors This report 
provides information about the condition of risks and internal controls at one point 1n time Future events and changes may significantly and adversely impact 
these risks and controls in ways that tn1s report did not and cannot ant1c1pale 

30-90 

10-40 

20-30 

0-10 

protiviti 



19 

Appendix C - ROW Acquisition Costs by Fiscal Year* 

ROW acquisition costs include cost of the parcel, legal and expert fees of both owner and the Authority. The below data includes 
all spend from 2010 through 2015, including parcels for which Final Judgment has not been entered, but deposits have been paid 
in the amount of the Authority's appraisal and legal and expert fees for all parcels regardless of completion. 

~ 
3 
cr 
~ 
B 
t! 
8 

$70,000,000 

$60,000,000 

$50,000,000 

$40,000,000 

$30,000,000 

$20,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$-
FY 2010 - 2011 FY 2011- 2012 FY 2012- 2013 FY 2013 - 2014 FY 2014 - 2015 

Fiscal Year 

*As recorded by the Central Florida Expressway Authority in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). 

© 2016 Prot1v1t1 Inc All R19nts Reserveo This document has been prepared for use by CFX s management audit committee, and ooard of directors This report 
provides information about the cond1t1on of nsks and internal controls at one point on time Future events and changes may signif1cantly and adversely impact 
these risks and controls in ways that this report d10 not and cannot anticipate 

protiviti 



20 

Appendix D - Key Controls 
The following key controls were identified by Internal Audit as part of the Right of Way audit: 

Legal Invoice Review 
1. CFX reviews legal invoices and checks rates, description of services, and expenses billed before approving and processing for 

payment. 
2. General Counsel reviews invoices for obvious duplication of tasks or high volume of hours. 
3. General Counsel reviews invoices submitted by outsourced legal counsel for activities being billed and the appropriateness of 

billings related to the status and strategy of the case. 

Monitoring of Parcel Acquisition 
4. Deputy General Counsel receives and reviews legal filings of outsourced counsel. 
5. ROW Committee must approve all ROW acquisitions settlements before the Board approves payment, with the exception of 

those cases decided at trial. 
6. The Board provides the authorization to initiate eminent domain proceedings. 
7. ROW Committee oversees and directs CFX delegation of authority to make offers, negotiate settlements, approve mediation 

and condemnation settlements. 
8. ROW Legal Counsel is responsible for all legal matters pertaining to the property acquisition process, including but not limited 

to preparing, filing, and prosecuting eminent domain proceedings (upon approval of CFX). 
9. ROW Legal Counsel, with oversight from General Counsel's office, is responsible for negotiating settlement agreements 

achieved after the filing of eminent domain proceedings, and will be responsible for securing approvals of such settlements, 
through the Right of Way Committee and Board. 

© 2016 Prot1v1t1 Inc Alt Rights Reserved This document has been prepared for use by CFX s management, audit comm ttee, and board of directors~ This report 
provides 1nformat1on about the condition or risks and internal controls at one point in 11me Future events and changes may signif1canUy and adversely impact 
these nsks and controls 1n ways that this repon did not and cannot an11c1pate 

protiviti· 



21 

Appendix D - Key Controls 

The following key controls were identified by Internal Audit as part of the Right of Way audit: 

Procurement 
10. Requests for proposal (RFPs) require specific levels of experience for any firms applying and specifically related to the practice 

of eminent domain. 
11. CFX has developed a Procurement Policy which is available online, as well as a Procurement Procedure Manual. The policy is 

reviewed and updated at least every two years, and the Procurement Procedure Manual is updated annually. 
12. CFX's Procurement Policy and Procurement Procedure Manual establishes a procurement authorization matrix which indicate 

the level of approval/authorization required at each threshold, as well as number of bids required for each process. 
13. Shortlisted firms are interviewed and scored by the Committee members based on technical criteria. 
14. Contracts for goods and services shall not exceed an initial term of five years. A renewal clause extending the term for up to 

five one-year periods may be provided. 
15. Standard Authority forms for contracts, amendments, supplemental agreements, renewal and similar documents shall be 

developed and used whenever possible. It is recognized that, due to their specialized nature, agreements with other 
governmental agencies, certain services providers and financial institutions preclude the use of such standard documents by 
the General Counsel must be received prior to their execution. 

16. The Authority uses a "Request for Proposal" process which details the work to be performed and qualifications required from 
responding firms. 

17. It is typically the Authority's desire to obtain at least three competitive bids or proposals for each new project; however, it is 
not required. In the instances where less then three bids are received a document is completed by the Director of 
Procurement to document the award decision (if applicable). 

18. Except for Emergency Purchases, all contracts, supplemental agreements, amendments, purchase orders and contract 
renewals obligating the Authority to an amount of $50,000 or more shall have the prior approval of the Authority's Board of 
Directors. 

19. Members of the Authority's Evaluation Committee will be required to complete a disclosure form, in compliance with the 
Authority's Ethics Policy, identifying any potential conflict of interest and certifying that no outside relationship exists that 
would adversely affect the member's judgment while serving on the Committee. 

20. Price proposals are opened by the Committee following the completion of the technical proposal scoring. A predefined scoring 
criteria is used to evaluate the price proposals and included in the Scoring Summary Form. The price scores are added to the 
technical scores for the final ranking based on points. 

© 2016 Prot1v1t1 lnc Al! Rights Reservea This document has been prepared for use by CFX s management audit committee, and board of directors This repor1 
provides 1ntarmat1cn aooui the cond1t1on of risks and internal controls at one point 1n time Future events and changes may significantly and adversely impact 
these risks and cortrols 1n ways that this report did not and cannot ant1c1pate 

protivit i 



22 

Powerful Insights. 
Proven Delivery.® 

© 2016 Protlv1t1 Inc All Rights Reserved This document has been prepared for use t>y CFX s management, audit committee, and board of directors This report 
provides information about the condition of risks and internal controls at one point in time Future events and changes may significantly and adversely impact 
these risks and controls 111 ways that this report d1d not and cannot anticipate 

protiviti ·· 





















CENTRAL FLORIDA
EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

Presenter
Presentation Notes
TRIVIA: ��1) What was the first CFX road to be constructed? 5282) When was E-PASS first introduced? 19943) How many toll roads does the CFX operate? 6



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 

Central Florida Expressway Authority
Right of Way Committee

May 25, 2016

DISCUSSION OF VERDICT

S.R. 429 Wekiva Parkway
Project 429-202
Parcels 113/713



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 

Aerial Photo



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 

Subject Property - Residence



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 

Summary of Values 

PARCEL 113/713 CFX’S VALUATION HATCHER’S VALUATION JURY VERDICT
Value of Land Taken, Parcel 
113

$7,700
($27,000/ac)

$20,000
($70,000/ac) $10,000

Value of Land Taken, Parcel 713 $300 $500 $500

Value of Improvements $4,700 $4,700 $4,700

Cost to Cure Damages $2,100 $2,100 $2,100

Severance Damages
$66,700

(10%)
$756,200

(30% from $30,000/ac) $242,700

Total Compensation $81,500 $783,500 $260,000



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 

Trial

 12 Jurors and 1 Alternate Juror
 6 days of trial
 Site Visit
 Witnesses
CFX called 1 expert witness and 1 fact 

witness
Landowners called 5 expert witnesses and 

0 fact witnesses.



WEKIVA PARKWAY

5
/
1
8
/
2
0
1
6

U
S

E
R
: 
s
c
h
n
2
0
8
7

T
:\

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
\

C
F

X
\

R
W
 
E

x
h
ib
it
s
\

W
e
k
iv

a
\
e
x
h
ib
it

0
1
-
b
.d

g
n

1
1
:2

0
:4

8
 

A
M

EXPRESSWAY

AUTHORITY

FLORIDA

CENTRAL

N N.T.S.

TL SMITH RD.

S
C

H
O

P
K

E
  R

D
.

PLYMOUTH SORRENTO  RD.

SCHOPKE LESTER  RD.

Y
O

T
H

E
R

S
 R

D
.

CITRUS CIRCLE

P
O

N
K

A
N
 R

D
.

HERMIT SMITH RD.

5

OF

1 

M
A

T
C

H
 L
IN

E
 - S

E
E
 S

H
E

E
T
 2

108

122

123

130

134125

132

120

135 138

150

140

153

154 156
157

158

168

166
167

170

869

185 186

180

1
7
3

1
7
4

1
7
5

1
7
6

1
7
7

1
7
8

1
7
9

141

Legend

800

429-202 429-203429-202

H
A

R
B

O
R

P
L

Y
M

O
U

T
H
 

PHILS LN

804
106

1
0
9

110 111

112

113

126

101

131

806
104

429-201

104C
804

102

107
807

811

142 145

144
143

125

130126

131

ACQUIRED/COMPLETE

LITIGATION

ACQUIRED/PENDING

134132

169

FEES & COSTS

ACQUIRED/PENDING

RIGHT-OF-WAY EXHIBIT

SUBJECT TO CHANGE

May 18, 2016

schn2087
Text Box
TAB LParcel 113

schn2087
Line



WEKIVA PARKWAY

5
/
1
8
/
2
0
1
6

U
S

E
R
: 
s
c
h
n
2
0
8
7

T
:\

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
\

C
F

X
\

R
W
 
E

x
h
ib
it
s
\

W
e
k
iv

a
\
e
x
h
ib
it

0
2
-
b
.d

g
n

1
1
:2

4
:3

4
 

A
M

EXPRESSWAY

AUTHORITY

FLORIDA

CENTRAL

N N.T.S.

D
O

W
M

A
N
 D

R
IV

E

PLYMOUTH SORRENTO  RD.

EFFIE DRIVE

B
O

C
H
 R

O
A

D

K
E

L
L

Y
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D

H
A

A
S
 R

O
A

D

5

OF

2 

R
O

A
D

O
N

D
IC

H

M
A

T
C

H
 L
IN

E
 - S

E
E
 S

H
E

E
T
 1

M
A

T
C

H
 L
IN

E
 - S

E
E
 S

H
E

E
T
 4

189

188 190

195

195

197

197

203

207

202

2
0

1

216 217

218

219 221

2
2
8

2
2
9

2
3
0

232

235
236

237 238

240

241

242

252

251

250

253
254

255

256

2
5
7

2
5
8

2
5
9

2
6
0

2
6
1

2
6
2 2

6
4

2
6
5

2
6
6

2
6

7 301

275

275

278

279

280

285

287

235

JO
E

Y
 M

cG
U

C
K
IN
 R

D

2
3
3

429-203 429-204

4
2

9
-
2

0
4

4
2

9
-
2

0
5

FOR CONTINUATION - SEE SHEET 3

256

256
249

209

219 221
193

Legend

ACQUIRED/COMPLETE

LITIGATION

ACQUIRED/PENDING

FEES & COSTS

ACQUIRED/PENDING

RIGHT-OF-WAY EXHIBIT

SUBJECT TO CHANGE

May 18, 2016

schn2087
Text Box
TAB BParcel 262

schn2087
Line

schn2087
Text Box
TAB CParcel 266

schn2087
Line



WEKIVA PARKWAY

5
/
1
8
/
2
0
1
6

U
S

E
R
: 
s
c
h
n
2
0
8
7

T
:\

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
\

C
F

X
\

R
W
 
E

x
h
ib
it
s
\

W
e
k
iv

a
\
e
x
h
ib
it

0
3
-
b
.d

g
n

1
1
:2

5
:2

8
 

A
M

EXPRESSWAY

AUTHORITY

FLORIDA

CENTRAL

M
T
 
P

L
Y

M
O

U
T

H
 
R

D

HASS RD

BOCH RD

C
.R
. 

4
3
5

6
6
.6

POND 2
05-

3

101

101

98

101
10198

80

80

77

80

80

77

95
95

92

92 95
95

120

120 117

117
120

120

POND 2
05-

2C

POND 2
05-

2B

POND 2
05-

2A

POND 205-1A

N

N
.T
.S
.

R
A
IN

E
Y
 R

O
A

D

M
O

U
N

T

PLYMOUTH

R
O

A
D

BOCH ROAD

ORANGE COUNTY

 

LAKE COUNTY

285 287

287

289

890

291

292

291

291

429-205

279 280

  
  
S
E

E
 S

H
E

E
T
 2

F
O

R
 C

O
N

T
IN

U
A

T
IO

N

429-204

429-205

5

OF

3 

288

Legend

ACQUIRED/COMPLETE

LITIGATION

ACQUIRED/PENDING

FEES & COSTS

ACQUIRED/PENDING

RIGHT-OF-WAY EXHIBIT

SUBJECT TO CHANGE

May 18, 2016



WEKIVA PARKWAY

5
/
1
8
/
2
0
1
6

U
S

E
R
: 
s
c
h
n
2
0
8
7

T
:\

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
\

C
F

X
\

R
W
 
E

x
h
ib
it
s
\

W
e
k
iv

a
\
e
x
h
ib
it

0
4
-
b
.d

g
n

1
1
:2

6
:2

5
 

A
M

EXPRESSWAY

AUTHORITY

FLORIDA

CENTRAL

CURVE DATA 453-2

PI STA. = 118+82.88

PT STA. = 130+08.20

e       = 0.054

PC STA. = 106+83.00

CURVE DATA 453-2

PI STA. = 118+82.88

PT STA. = 130+08.20

e       = 0.054

PC STA. = 106+83.00

PC STA. = 106+83.00

e       = 0.054

PT STA. = 130+08.20

PI STA. = 118+82.88

CURVE DATA 453-2

PT STA. = 130+08.20

PC STA. = 106+83.00

e       = 0.054

PI STA. = 118+82.88

CURVE DATA 453-2

PI STA. = 118+82.88

CURVE DATA 453-2

e       = 0.054

PT STA. = 130+08.20

PC STA. = 106+83.00

PC STA. = 143+27.63

R       = 17,188.73'

PI STA. = 148+53.10

CURVE DATA 453-3

PCC STA. = 153+78.24

e       = NC

PC STA. = 143+27.63

R       = 17,188.73'

PCC STA. = 153+78.24

e       = NC

PI STA. = 148+53.10

CURVE DATA 453-3

R       = 17,188.73'

e       = NC

PCC STA. = 153+78.24

PC STA. = 143+27.63

CURVE DATA 453-3

PI STA. = 148+53.10

C
U

R
V

E
 

D
A

T
A
 
4
5
3
-
4

P
I
 
S

T
A
.
 
=
 
1
5
8
+
9
6
.
0
6

P
C

C
 
S

T
A
.
 
=
 
1
5
3
+
7
8
.
2
4

P
T
 
S

T
A
.
 
=
 
1
6
4
+
0
2
.
8
2

e       = 0.04

C
U
R

V
E
 

D
A
T

A
 
4
5
3
-
4

P
I
 
S
T

A
.
 
=
 
1
5
8
+
9
6
.
0
6

P
C
C
 
S
T

A
.
 
=
 
1
5
3
+
7
8
.
2
4

P
T
 
S
T

A
.
 
=
 
1
6
4
+
0
2
.
8
2

e       = 0.04

103

104

105

106

P
C
 
S

T
A
. 
1
0
6
+
8
3
.0

0

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

11
5

11
6

11
7

11
8

1
1
9

1
2
0

1
2
1

1
2
2

1
2
3

1
2
4

1
2
5

1
2
6

1
2
7

1
2
8

1
2
9

1
3
0

PT STA. 130+08.20

1
3
1

1
3
2

1
3
3

1
3
4

1
3
5

1
3
6

1
3
7

1
3
8

1
3
9

1
4
0

1
4
1

1
4
2

1
4
3

PC STA. 143+27.63

1
4
4

1
4
5

1
4
6

1
4
7

1
4
8

1
4
9

1
5
0

1
5
1

1
5
2

1
5
3

PCC STA. 153+78.24

1
5
4

1
5
5

1
5
6

1
5
7

1
5
8

1
5
9

1
6
0

16
1

PT 
STA.

 1
00

+0
0.
00

T       = 525.47'

L       = 1,050.61'

T       = 525.47'

L       = 1,050.61'

T       = 525.47'

L       = 1,050.61'

T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
=
 
5
1
7
.
8
2
'

L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
=
 
1
,
0
2
4
.
5
8
'

R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
=
 
2
,
8
6
4
.
7
9
'

T       = 1,199.88'

L       = 2,325.19'

R       = 3,819.72'

T       = 1,199.88'

L       = 2,325.19'

R       = 3,819.72'

T       = 1,199.88'

L       = 2,325.19'

R       = 3,819.72'

T       = 1,199.88'

L       = 2,325.19'

R       = 3,819.72'

T       = 1,199.88'

L       = 2,325.19'

R       = 3,819.72'

T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
=
 
5
1
7
.
8
2
'

L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
=
 
1
,
0
2
4
.
5
8
'

R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
=
 
2
,
8
6
4
.
7
9
'

C
U
R

V
E
 

D
A
T

A
 
R

A
M
P
B
-
4

P
I
 
S
T

A
.
 
=
 
6
3
0
+
3
2
.
1
4

P
C
 
S
T

A
.
 
=
 
6
2
9
+
9
9
.
3
0

P
T
 
S
T

A
.
 
=
 
6
3
0
+
6
4
.
9
7

T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
=
 
3
2
.
8
4
'

L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
=
 
6
5
.
6
7
'

R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
=
 
2
,
8
0
8
.
7
9
'

£ 
CONST.

 R
AM

P 
K,
 2

0'
 R

T

STA.
 2

43
3+

84
.6
6

2W-PB-1, EL. 70.11

2W-PB-2, EL. 71.84

2W-PB-3, EL. 70.89

2W-PB-4, EL. 70.00

2W-PB-5, EL. 68.70

EL. 79.48
154+00, 150' RT
2E

EL. 91.34
154+00, 300' RT
2E

EL. 78.58
156+00, 300' RT
2E

LYDAR CONTOUR INFORMATION
EL. ESTIMATED USING
NOTE:
EL. 89.2
156+00, 500' RT
2E

94

90

85

80

75

S
W

A
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
R
 4

3
7

N

N
.T
.S
.

OAK LANE

ADAIR AVE

BOCH ROAD

ORANGE COUNTY

 

LAKE COUNTY

R
O

A
D

S
O

R
R

E
N

T
O

P
L

Y
M

O
U

T
H

MATCH LINE - SEE SHEET 2

SE
E
 S

H
E
E
T
 5

M
A

T
C
H
 L
IN

E
 - 

301

302

303

304

305

314
315

316

311

312

311

311

311

311

313

4
2
9
-
2
0
6

4
2
9
-
2
0
4

5

OF

4 

CORONADO SOMERSET

Legend

ACQUIRED/COMPLETE

LITIGATION

ACQUIRED/PENDING

FEES & COSTS

ACQUIRED/PENDING

RIGHT-OF-WAY EXHIBIT

SUBJECT TO CHANGE

May 18, 2016

453

schn2087
Line

schn2087
Text Box
TAB EParcel 305

schn2087
Text Box
TAB DParcel 304

schn2087
Line



WEKIVA PARKWAY

5
/
1
8
/
2
0
1
6

U
S

E
R
: 
s
c
h
n
2
0
8
7

T
:\

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
\

C
F

X
\

R
W
 
E

x
h
ib
it
s
\

W
e
k
iv

a
\
e
x
h
ib
it

0
5
-
b
.d

g
n

1
1
:3

1
:1

6
 

A
M

EXPRESSWAY

AUTHORITY

FLORIDA

CENTRAL

STA 1271+50

STA 1274+22.83

STA 1280+71.52
STA 5+50 SR 46 RT

STA 5+50 SR 46 LT

N

N
.T
.S
.

SR 46

5

OF

5 

SE
E
 S

H
E
E
T
 4

M
A

T
C
H
 L
IN

E
 - 

329

328

827

R
R
 C

O
R
R
ID

O
R

R
O

U
N

D
 L

A
K

E
 R

D

322

318
319320

332

CORONADO SOMERSET DR

330

RIGHT-OF-WAY EXHIBIT

SUBJECT TO CHANGE

S
O

U
T

H
 C

O
R

O
N

A
D

O

WOLF BRANCH RD

335 336

429-206

331

Legend

ACQUIRED/COMPLETE

LITIGATION

ACQUIRED/PENDING

FEES & COSTS

ACQUIRED/PENDING

332

329

331

319

May 18, 2016

schn2087
Text Box
TAB FParcel 827

schn2087
Line

schn2087
Line



schn2087
Text Box
TAB LParcel 113

schn2087
Line

schn2087
Text Box
TAB BParcel 262

schn2087
Line

schn2087
Text Box
TAB EParcel 305

schn2087
Line

schn2087
Text Box
TAB CParcel 266

schn2087
Line

schn2087
Line

schn2087
Text Box
TAB FParcel 827

schn2087
Line

schn2087
Text Box
TAB DParcel 304

schn2087
Rectangle

schn2087
Rectangle

schn2087
Rectangle

schn2087
Text Box
CFX


	Agenda May 25th
	Tab A - April 27th Minutes
	Tab B - P262 Ali Roberts
	Tab C - P262, 266 & 866 Ackley
	Tab D - P304 Gress
	Tab E - P305 Lewis
	Tab F - P827/727 CSX
	Tab G - P1-141 Chickasaw Property
	Tab H - Bullard
	Tab I - Durrance
	Tab J - Donald W. McIntosh, Assoc.
	Tab K - Protiviti Real Estate Audit
	Tab L - P113 Hatcher
	PowerPoint Presentation

	Map of project with parcel numbers 
	CFX Project Section Map with parcel locations
	2016-04-27 Draft ROW Committee Minutes.pdf
	Item 6:  S.R. 429 (RIGSBY) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-204) PARCEL
	240
	S.R. 429 (HMF LLC) WEKIVA PARKWAY PROJECT (PROJECT 429-204) PARCEL 301




